THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE
COMPANY LINITED

85th Annual Report
2021 - 2022



EIGHTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Day : Thursday
Date :  15th September 2022
Time : 10.30 a.m.

Venue : The Midland Rubber & Produce Co. Ltd.
27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi
Ernakulam - 682 036




THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mrt. Ajit Thomas, Chairman
Mrs. Shanthi Thomas

Mr. A. D. Bopana

Mr. S. Ganesan

Mr. R. Venugopalan

AUDITORS

M/s. Suri & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Park Circle 2nd Floor, No.20 Moores Road,
Thousand Lights, Chennai 600 006

BANKERS
Bank of Baroda.

ESTATES

Arnakal Estate, Arnakal PO
Vandiperiyar - 685 533
Idukki District

Tel: 04869 252224

Perinaad Estate

Maniyaru P O

Via Vadasserikkara - 689 662
Pathanamthitta District

Tel: 04735 - 274246

REGISTERED OFFICE

No.27/1032, Panampilly Nagar

Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036

Tel : 0484 - 2315312  Fax : 0484 - 2312541
E-mail : secmidland@avtplantations.co.in
CIN : U25191KL1937PLC000691

CONTENTS

Notice to the Shareholders
Directors’ Report
Independent Auditors’ Report
Accounts

Cash Flow Statement

Notes

Consolidated Statements

Financial Highlights

[

36
43
45
47
82
127




NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the EIGHTY FIFTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at the
Registered Office at No.27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi,
Ernakulam — 682 036 at 10.30 A.M. on Thursday, the
15* day of September, 2022 to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements (including Consolidated Financial Statements)
of the company for the year ended 315" March, 2022 and
the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Final Dividend on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ajit Thomas
(DIN: 00018691) who retires by rotation and is eligible
for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. S.Ganesan
(DIN: 08588380) who retires by rotation and is eligible
for re-appointment.

5. To consider and, if thought fit to pass, with or without

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time, M/s. Suri & Co, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004283S), be and is
hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 90* AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027, at such remuneration
plus taxes applicable thereon, out of pocket and travelling
expenses as may be mutually agreed between the Board of
Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. Revision in remuneration of Ms. Divya Thomas,
Manager - Business Strategy
To consider and, if thought fit to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
188 (1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 15
of the Companics (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 the consent of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for revision in remuneration of Ms. Divya Thomas,

daughter of Mr. Ajit Thomas, Chairman of the Company, to
hold office as Manager —Business Strategy of the Company
commencing from April 01, 2022, on the following terms
and conditions:
Remuneration:
1. Basic Salary : Rs.2,20,000/- per month
2. House Rent Allowance : Rs. 40,000/ per month
3. Perquisites in addition to the above:

a) Contributions to Provident Fund @12 % on basic

salary as per Company Rules;
b) Gratuity as per statute;
o) Leave as per Leave Rules of the Company

d) Re-imbursement of Medical Expenses as per the Rules
of the company;

e) Group Term Life Insurance coverage as per the Rules
of the company

f) Group Personal Accident Insurance coverage as per
the Rules of the company

g) Mediclaim policy as per the Rules of the company .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company and any person / authority authorised by the
Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to promote Ms. Divya Thomas to higher cadres
and/or to sanction her increments and/or accelerated
increments within the said cadre or higher cadre as and when
the Board of Directors deems fit, subject, however, to the
rules and regulations of the Company in force from time to
time, as may be required in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and is hereby authorised to take, perform
and execute such further steps, acts, deeds and matters, as

may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution.

On Behalf of the Board

Ajit Thomas

Chennai Chairman

26.07.2022 DIN : 00018691
Registered Office :

No.27/1032, Panampilly Nagar

Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036

Tel : 0484 - 2315312 Fax : 0484 - 2312541
E-mail : secmidland@avtplantations.co.in
CIN : U25191KL1937PLC000691



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a memberof
the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy
should, however, be deposited at the registered office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting,

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than ten per cent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy
for any other person or shareholder.

3. The Annual General Meeting will be held by strictly
adhering to the Social Distancing Norms and other
Safety Protocols/SOPs including use of face masks, hand
sanitizers, infrared thermometer etc. as per the latest
guidelines issued by the Ministry of Health & Family
Welfare, Government of India and the State Government
amid COVID-19 Pandemic. Members / Proxyholders
are requested to follow COVID-19 related guidelines.

In the event of any regulations/restrictions imposed by
the Government of India and/or State Government due
to COVID-19, requiring change of the date or place of
the AGM, the shareholders of the Company will be
notified of the revised arrangements.

4, The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of
the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating
to Special Business at the meeting is annexed hereto.

5. The relevant details pursuant to the Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India in respect of Director seeking
re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting is
annexed.

6. Corporate members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to
send to the Company a certified copy of the board
resolution authorizing their representative to attend and
vote on their behalf at the meeting.

7. The Company has appointed M/s Cameo Corporate
Services Limited, Chennai as its Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent and depository interface of the Company

with CDSL and NSDL. Shareholders intending to hold
their shares in electronic form may approach their
depository participants for dematerialisation of shares.
Shareholders may send their shares for effecting
transmission/transposition to M/s Cameo Corporate
Services Limited.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from September 09,
2022 to September 15, 2022, (both days inclusive).

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to
their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on Cut-off date September 08, 2022

10. The final dividend as recommended by the Board, if

11.

12,

approved at this meeting, will be paid within 30 days
from the date of AGM, to those members whose names
appear in the Register of Members on that date.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change
in their address to the company’s Share Transfer Agent,
M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Subramanian
Building, No. 1, Club House Road, Chennai- 600 002
in the case of physical holdings and to their respective
Depository Participants in case of dematerialized shares.

Members of the Company who have not yet registered/
updated their e-mail address are requested to register/
update their e-mail address with Company’s Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Cameo Corporate
Services Limited, ‘Subramanian Building’, No.1,
Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002,
Email:- investor@cameoindia.com or with their
Depository Participant, to enable the Company to send
all future communications.

13. The Finance Act, 2020 had made the dividend declared

from O1st April 2020, taxabie in the hands of
sharcholders, where the dividend exceeds Rs.5000/- in
a financial year. This has created a requirement for the
investors to submit Form 15G/15H in case if they would
like to be exempted from deduction of tax from their
dividend. Form 15 G/ 15H can be downloaded from
the web link https:// investors.cameoindia.com to avail
the benefit and email to investor@cameoindia.com.
There is also a provision to upload Form 15G/15H in
the weblink viz. https://investors.cameoindia.com
provided by the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent M/s Cameo Corporate Services Limited.



14.

15.

16.

17

Members are requested to furnish to the Company’s
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent immediately their bank
account details in the case of physical holdings, and to
their respective Depository Participants in case of
demarted shares, so that the payment of dividend when
made through National Electronic Clearing Service
(NECS), National Electronic Fund Transfer (NEFT),
Direct Credit, Dividend Warrants etc., can be made
without delay.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised
to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of
any change in address or demise of any member as soon
as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their
demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement
of holdings should be obtained from the concerned
Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

Shareholders who have multiple folios in identical names
or in joint names in the same order, are requested to
intimate to the Company these folios, to enable the

Company to consolidate all such shareholdings into one
folio.

Shareholders of the Company may avail the nomination
facility by executing the prescribed nomination form,
which can be obtained from the Registered Office of the
Company or from the company’s Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has transferred the unpaid or
unclaimed Dividend for the financial year 2013-2014
and that of Interim Dividend for the financial year
2014-2015 to the Investor Education & Protection
Fund (IEPF) constituted by the Central Government.
Final Dividend declared for the financial year
2014-2015 and First Interim Dividend for the financial
year 2015-2016 remaining unpaid/unclaimed over a
period of 7 years are liable to be transferred to the above
fund during the year and no claim shall lie against the
Company or the said Fund, once it is transferred.

Pursuant to Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Amendment Rules, 2017 (“Rules”) notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairson 28" February,2017,
the Company is required to transfer all shares in respect
of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for

18.

19.

20.

seven consecutive years to the IEPF Authority. The
shareholders are requested to claim the unpaid dividend
amount(s) immediately, failing which their shares shall
be transferred to the demar account of the IEPF Authority
as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with applicable IEPF Rules.

Members are requested to submit attested copy of PAN
CARD of the transferee(s), surviving holder(s), legal
heir(s) and joint holder(s) in case of deletion of name of
deceased shareholder(s)/ transmission of shares, in respect
of shares held in physical form, along with necessary
documents at the time of lodgement of request for
transmission. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide
notification dated 10th September, 2018, mandarted
that transfer of securities of unlisted public companies
shall be carried outin  dematerialised form only with
effect from 2™ October, 2018. Accordingly, members
who have not yet converted their holdings into electronic
demat form may do so immediately for their own interest.

Documents referred to in the Notice shall be open for
inspection by the members at the registered office of the
Company on all working days (Monday to Friday)
during business hours, except holidays, upto the date of
the meeting.

Voting facilities

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
Company is pleased to provide members the facility to
exercise their right to vote at the 85" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business
may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
The facility for voting either through electronic voting
system or ballot or polling paper shall also be made
available at the meeting and members attending the
meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting,

Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting
prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but

shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.



21. THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL
e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case
of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in
demat mode.

(i) The voting period begins on September 12, 2022-
9.00 AM and ends on September 14, 2022- 5.00
PM. During this period shareholders of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record
date) i.e. September 08, 2022, may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voting thereafter

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the
meeting date would not be entitled to vote ar the
meeting venue.

(iii) Currently, there are multiple e-voting service
providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs
and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting
process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat
account holders, by way of a single login credential,
through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account
holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in
e-voting process.
Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL
e-Voting system in case of individual

shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for e-Voting for Individual

shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is

given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1)

)

Userswho have opted for CDSL Esi/ Easis
facility, can login through their existing user
idand password. Option will be made available
to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to

Easi / Easiest are hetps://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasithome/login ~ or  visit
www,cdslindia. com and click on Login icon
and select New System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user
will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by
company. On dlicking the evoting option, the
user will be able to se e-Voting page of the
¢-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.
Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the
¢-Voting service providers' website directly.

IFthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest,

option to register is available at heeps:/
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access
e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link
available on www.cdslindia.com home page or
click on hetps:/levoting.cdslindia.com/
Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the
e-Voting option where the evoting isin progress
and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers.




Individual
Shareholders
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

p)

Ifyou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS
facility, please visit the e-Services website of
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
cither on a Personal Computer or on amobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched,
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will
beable to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for [DeAS
e-Services, option to register is available at
hrtps:/feservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register
Online for IDeAS “Portal or dlick at hutps:/
leservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/
IdeasDirectReg jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL: hrtps:/
Iwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on amobile. Once the home page
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code s shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you cansee e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to ¢-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of
Shareholders |  your demat account through your Depository
(holding Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
securitiesin | ¢-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will

demat I!'IOd.C) bcabiclone—Voungopnon.Onaymdﬂon
login through e-Voting option, you will be redirected o NSDL/
their CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting

Depository ; .

Participants feature. Click on company name or ¢-Voting

(DP) service provider name and you will be redirected
t ¢-Voting service provider website for casting
your vote during the remote ¢-Voting period.

Important note : Members who are unable to retrieve
User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and
NSDL

Login Type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical
holding securities in Demat | issue in login can contact CDSL
mode with CDSL hdpdﬁkhyz.ndingamqusm

or contact at toll free no.
1800225533

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical is-
holding securities in Demat | sucin login can contact NSDL
mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
i .co.in orcall at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and

1800224430

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case

of shareholders holding shares in physical mode
and non-individual sharcholders in demar

mode.

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical

1)

2)
3)

shareholders and shareholders other than

individual holding in Demat form.
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting

website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by
8 Digits Client ID,



c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form
should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

4)  Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and
Click on Login.

5) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier e-voting of any company, then your
existing password is to be used.

6) Ifyou are a first-time user follow the steps given

below:

For Physical shareholders and other than
individual sharcholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN
issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as
well as physical shareholders)

o Shareholders who have not updated
their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to
use the sequence number sent by

Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details o Date of
Bank Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
Details your demat account o in the company records

o in order to login.

Date of ® [f both the details are not recorded

Birth with the depository or company, please

(DOB) enter the member id / folio number in
the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT™ ab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will
then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, sharcholders holding shares in demat
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be also used by the
demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which rhey are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not
to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password

confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form,
the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for The Midland Rubber &
Produce Company Limited on which you choose
to vote.

(x)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO? for voting. Select the option YES or
NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if
you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to
vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on “OK?, else to change your vore, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiif) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking
on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) Ifademat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/
POA if any uploaded, which will be made available
to scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii)Additional Facility for Non — Individual
Shareholders and Custodians — For Remote
Voting only.
¢ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than

Individuals, HUE NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to logon to www.evotingindia.com
and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

® Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing
the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be
able to link the account(s) for which they wish

to vote on.



e The list of accounts linked in the login will be
mapped automatically & can be delink in case
of any wrong mapping.

e It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the
Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify
the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are
required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company
at the email address viz;
secmidland@avtplantations.co.in, if they have
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same
in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS
WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/
DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email
to Company viz. secmidland@avtplantations.co.in
/RTA email id viz. investor@cameoindia.com

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email
id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update

your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandartory
while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.
If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting
from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact
at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting
by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository
Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N
M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013
or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or call at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

General Instructions

i)

Mr. V. Suresh, Practising Company Secretary (C.P.
No. 6032) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-Voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting
at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast
at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least
two witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and make, not later than 3 days of
conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him
in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare
the result of the voting forthwith. The resoluticns
will be deemed have been passed on the AGM date
subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in
favour of the resolutions.

iii) The Results declared along with the report of the

Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of CDSL
immediately after the declaration of the result. The
results shall also be displayed on the notice board at
the Registered Office of the Company.

iv) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in

proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on September 08, 2022.
A person who is not a Member as on the cut off-date
should treat this Notice for information purposes
only.

On Behalf of the Board

Ajit Thomas

Chennai Chairman
26.07.2022 DIN : 00018691

Registered Office :

No.27/1032, Panampilly Nagar

Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036

Tel : 0484 - 2315312 Fax: 0484 - 2312541

E-mail :

secmidland@avtplantations.co.in

CIN : U25191KL1937PLC000691



PARTICULARS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER
CLAUSE 1.2.5. OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS 2) ON GENERAL MEETINGS

Item No. 3 - To appoint a Director in place of Mr.Ajit Thomas (DIN: 00018691), who retires by rotation and is eligible for
re-appointment.

Name of Director Mr. Ajit Thomas
Date of Birth 07.06.1954
DIN 00018691
Nationality Indian
Qualifications B.Sc. (Statstics)
Expertise in specific functional areas Vast experience in Plantations, Industry, Administrative matters,
Finance and Business Management
Date of appointment 20.03.1991
Number of Board Meetings attended during Held - 4
the Financial Year 2021-2022 Attended - 4
Relationship with other directors Husband of Mrs. Shanthi Thomas, Director of the Company
Directorships held in other Companies as on Executive Chairman
March 31, 2022 (excluding foreign companies) - A.V.Thomas & Company Limited
Chairman
- AVT Natural Products Limited
- The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd.
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited
- Midland Latex Products Limited
- Aspera Logistics Private Limited

- AVT Mccormick Ingredients Private Limited

- Midland Corporate Advisory Services Private Limited

- AVT Holdings Private Limited

Director

- AVT Gavia Foods Private Limited

- A.V.Thomas Leather & Allied Products Private Limited
- AV Thomas Investments Company Limited

- Grover Zampa Vineyards Limited (Nominee Director)

- Saksoft Limited (Independent Director)

Membership of Committees of other Companies Chairman - Audit Committee
- Saksoft Limited
Member - Audit Committee
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited
- AVT Natural Products Limited
Meuﬁ:oer - Nomination & Remuneration Committee
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited
- Saksoft Limited
Chairman - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
- AVT Natural Products Limited
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited
- The Nelliampthy Tea 8 Produce Company Limited
Chairman - CSR Committee
- A.V.Thomas & Company Limited
Member - CSR Committee
- AVT Natural Products Limited
Member - Risk Management Committee
- AVT Natural Products Limited

Number of Shares held in the Company 3,17,646 equity shares of Rs. 10 each
He is the Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and CSR Committee of the company.




PARTICULARS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER
CLAUSE 1.2.5. OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS 2) ON GENERAL MEETINGS

Item No. 4 - To appoint a Director in place of Mr.S. Ganesan (DIN: 08588380), who retires by rotation and is eligible for
re-appointment.

Name of the Director Mr. S. Ganesan
Date of Birth 21.06.1950
DIN 08588380
Nationality Indian
Qualifications C.A

Expertise in specific functional areas

Vast experience in Corporate Audit and Corporate Taxation

Date of appointment

25.11.2019

Number of Board Meetings attended during
the Finanical Year 2021-2022

Held - 4
Attended - 4

Relationship with other directors

Not related to any Director

Directorships held in other Companies as on
March 31, 2022(excluding foreign companies)

Director

The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Company Limited
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited

- L.]J. International Limited

- The Highland Produce Company Limited

Membership of Committees of other Companies

Member - Stakeholders Relationship Committee
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Limited

Number of Shares held in the Company

Nil




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, which sets out the details relating to
Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and shall
be taken as forming part of this Notice :-

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 6.

Revision in remuneration of Ms. Divya Thomas,
Manager- Business Strategy

Ms. Divya Thomas, has been working with the company
since November 11, 2019 designated as Manager — Business
Strategy. The Board of Directors of the Company had
recommended to increase her salary as set out in the resolution.

Since, Ms. Divya Thomas is the daughter of Mr. Ajit Thomas,
Chairman, the salary increase is covered under Section
188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, approval
of the shareholders by way of ordinary resolution at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting is required. Ms. Divya
Thomas is interested in this resolution. Mr. Ajit Thomas and
Mirs. Shanthi Thomas, being relatives, are also interested in

this resolution. None of the other Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

The Board of D rectors recommends the resolution as set out
in Item No.6 of the Notice for approval of the shareholders.

On Behalf of the Board

Ajit Thomas

Chennai Chairman
26.07.2022 DIN : 00018691

Registered Office :

No.27/1032, Panampilly Nagar

Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036

Tel : 0484 - 2315312 Fax : 0484 - 2312541
E-mail : secmidland@avtplantations.co.in
CIN : U25191KL1937PLC000691
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eighty Fifth Annual Report, with the Audited Accounts for the year ended

March 31, 2022.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The standalone performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized below:

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars 2021 - 2022 2020 - 2021
Income from Operations 5,055.74 6,247.32
Other Income 1,158.11 748.31
Total Income 6,213.85 6,995.63
Profit before tax and Extraordinary items for the year 1,025.53 1,551.43
Add: Extra ordinary Irems 566.04 -
Profit before Tax 1,591.57 1,551.43
Less : Provision for taxation
(inclusive of MAT credit utilized and Deferred Tax) 272.00 228.15
Profit after tax 1,319.57 1,323.28
Add:  Surplus brought forward from previous year 5,341.03 5,212.29
Total Amount available for appropriation 6,660.60 6.535.57
Less:
Final Dividend for previous year paid on Equity shares 194.54
Total Interim Dividend paid on equity shares 97.27 194.54
Transfer to General Reserve 1,000.00 1,000.00
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 5,368.79 5,341.03
OPERATIONS REVIEW CARDAMOM

TEA

The production during the year was 12.43 Lakhs Kg with
an average yield of 2296 Kg per hecrare as against the last
year’s production of 15.59 Lakhs Kg with an average yield
of 2930 Kg per hectare. Apart from this there is also a
production of 11.13 Lakhs kg as against the last year
10.90 Lakhs kg of bought leaf and reprocessed Tea. The sale
average during the year was Rs. 151.08 Kg against the last
year's average at Rs. 171.91 per Kg. The crop for the current
season is expected to be satisfactory, subject to normal weather

conditions.

1

The production during the year was 85279 Kg as against
the last year’s production of 73029 Kgs. During the year
under report, the price of Cardamom was at Rs. 1072.81 per
Kg. compared to the last year’s average of Rs. 1657.94

RUBBER

Production during the year under report was 2.04 lacs Kgs as
against the last years production of 2.17 Lakhs Kgs. The sale
average during the year was Rs. 205.09 per kg. as compared
to the last year’s average of Rs. 160.59



OVERSEAS BRANCH OFFICE

During the year, the Company had set up a branch office
in U.K. to explore overseas business opportunities.

LAND MATTERS

As indicated in the Directors’ Report of previous years, the
claim before the Civil Court at Pathanamthitta for recovery
of possession of 432.26 acres of land, leased out to Perinad
Estate has now been dismissed by the Court on the ground
that the company enjoys fixity of tenure under the The Kerala
Land Reforms Act. Against the order of the Sub-Court, the
Petitioner has filed a regular first appeal before the Hon.
High Court of Kerala and the case is yet to be heard.

DIVIDEND

During the year, the Board of Directors declared an Interim
Dividend of 250% (Rs. 25 per equity share aggregating to
Rs. 97.27 Lakhs. Your Directors are pleased to recommend a
Final Dividend of 750% (Rs. 75 per share) on Equity Share
Capital for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The aggregate
of the dividends, amounts to Rs. 100/- per equity share
(1000%) for the year ended 31st March, 2022 amounting
to Rs. 389.08 Lakhs.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

The Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 10 crores to
the General Reserve for the Financial Year 2021-2022.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS,
IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitments, affecting
the financial position of the Company between the end of
the financial year of the Company and the date of the report
other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 (* the Rules’) as amended from time to time, all
unpaid or unclaimed dividends, after the completion of seven
years, are required to be transferred by the Company to the
IEPF established by the Central Government. Further,
according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend
has not been paid or unclaimed by the shareholders for seven
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consecutive years or more shall also to be transferred to the demat
account created by the IEPF Authority. Accordingly, the
Company had transferred to the IEPF Authority the unclaimed
and unpaid dividends and 225 Equity Shares of the Company
during the Financial Year 2021-2022. The Company had
appointed Mr. Ajit Thomas, Chairman, as Nodal Officer, in
pursuance of InvestorEducation and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Second Amendment
Rules, 2019, for the purposes of verification of claim and for
co-ordination with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors consists of Mr. Ajit Thomas,
Chairman, Mrs. Shanthi Thomas, Mr. A.D.Bopana,
Mr. S.Ganesan and Mr.R.Venugopalan as Directors

The Board of Directors met Four times during the financial year
2021-2022. The dates on which the meetings were held are as
follows:-

26.04.2021, 19.08.2021, 15.12.2021 and 08.02.2022.

The intervening gap between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company is not required to constitute an Audit
Committee as per Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The company does not fall within the ambit of the provisions of
Section 177(9) of the Companies Act2013 regarding Vigil
Mechanism.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company is not required to constitute a Nomination &
Remuneration Committee under Rule 6 of the Companies

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of investments made by Company is given in the
note nos. 8 & 9 to the financial statements.



FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public
during the year.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Ajit Thomas, Chairman, (DIN: 00018691) and
M. S. Ganesan, Director (DIN: 08588380) retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. The Directors recommend
the re-appointment of Mr. Ajit Thomas and Mr. S.Ganesan
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding the
appointment of Key Mangerial Personal are not applicable
to the company

INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE/FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JV

As required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated Financial
Statement in respect of its Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint
Venture companies alongwith its own financial statements.
Further, details of financial performance/financial position of
the Subsidiaries and associate companies as required under
first proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are
annexed in Form AOC 1 (Annexure 1).

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The company has taken adequate steps for conservation of
energy by utilizing alternate sources and by investing on
energy conservation equipment. The particulars prescribed
by the Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating
to Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are
furnished in the Annexure 2 to this Report.

FOREIGN
OUTGO

During the year under review, there was no Foreign
Exchange Earnings. The foreign exchange outgo during the
year was Rs. 2197.07 Lakhs (previous year: Nil)

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing remuneration paid to employees
as required under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rues), 2014
forms part of this Report. Further the report and the accounts
are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid
annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said
annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days of the
Company upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. Any member interested in obtaining a copy of the
same may write to the Company and the same will be provided
free of cost to the member.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the members of the
Company in their 80th Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held on 30t August, 2017 had re-appointed M/s. Suri &
Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.004283S)
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5
years till the conclusion of the 85t Annual General Meeting.
Consequently, M/s. Suri & Co, Chartered Accountants, will
complete their term of five consecutive years as the Statutory
Auditors of the company at the conclusion of the ensuing

85" Annual General Meeting of the company.

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 26-07-2022,
recommended the re-appointment of M/s. Suri & Co,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.0042838) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, subject to the approval
of the sharcholders, for a further period of Five year(s)
commencing from the conclusion of the ensuing 85* Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of 90* Annual General
Meeting. M/s. Suri & Co, Chartered Accountants have
consented to the said appointment and confirmed thar their
appointment, if made, would be within the limits mentioned
under Section 141 (3) (g) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the Companies (Audit and Audirtors) Rules, 2014.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks mentioned in
the Auditors’ report. The notes to accounts forming part of

financial statements are self-explanatory and needs no further
clarification.



SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Secretarial Audit is not applicable as per Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014 read with Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) relating to the Board
and General Meetings have been complied with by the
Company.

COST AUDIT REPORT

The provisions of Cost Audit under Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
The company has maintained Cost Records as per Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company has in place adequate Internal Audit and
Internal Financial Control system commensurate with the
nature of its business and the size and complexities of
operations and adequate with reference to the financial
statements.

During the year under review, M/s. PSDY & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Ernakulam carried out the internal
audit of the company and submitted their reports. Your
directors endorse that during the year under review, there
were no reportable material weaknesses in the present systems
or operations of internal controls.

INSURANCE

The Company continues to carry adequate insurance coverage
for all assets.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties
were in the Ordinary course of business and at Arm’s Length
pricing basis. Details of the transactions are provided in Form
AOC -2 which is attached as Annexure 3 to this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There were no significant material orders passed by the
Regulators/ Courts which would impact the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations.

ANNUAL RETURN

A copy of Annual Retusn of the Company as provided under
sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is

enclosed as Annexure- 4.
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
During the year under review, your company enjoyed cordial
relationship with workers and employees at all levels.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended, since the CSR amount required to be spent by the
Company during the Financial Year 2021-2022 was less
than Rs. 50 lakhs, the CSR functions could be discharged by
the Board of Directors of the Company. Accordingly, the
details about the initiatives taken by the Company on CSR
during the Financial Year 2021-2022 is enclosed as
Annexure - 5 to this Report

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship
Committee comprising of Mr.Ajit Thomas, as Chairman,
Mrs. Shanthi Thomas and Mr.A.D.Bopana as Members
of the Committee. The Board has designated
Mr. Deepak.G.Prabhu, General Manager - Finance of the
Company to handle investor grievances.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013
the Company had laid down the procedures to inform Board
members about the risk assessment and mitigation procedures.
Regarding the general risk, the company follows a minimal
risk business strategy as given below.

Particulars
Fixed Assets and
Current Assets

Risk Minimizing steps

The company has taken adequate
insurance coverage of its fixed assets
and current assets which will
minimize the impact of another event
or development

The company has a conservative
debt policy. The debt component
is very marginal

Financial Risk

Mr. Deepak.G.Prabhu, General Manager-Finance has been
assigned the task of informing the Board about the various
risks and its mitigation by the Company from time to time.

At present the company has not identified any element of
risk which may threaten the existence of the Company



DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company
has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant
accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out
in the Note 1 to the Financial Statements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy
in line with the requirements of the Act and that an Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of
complaints and that all employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the year the company has not received any compliant
under Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

I In the preparation of the annual accounts for the
Financial Year ended 31* March, 2022, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

II. The Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so asto give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
company for that period;
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IIl. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe-
guarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the
Financial Year ended 31* March, 2022 on a going
concern basis;

V. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

VI. The Directors had devised proper system to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating

effectively.
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Chennai Chairman
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FORM AOC - 1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

ANNEXURE 1

1 Sl No. 01
2 Name of the subsidiary Midland Latex Products Ltd.
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different
from the holding company’s reporting period NA
K Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant financial year inthe case of foreign subsidiaries Rupees
5 Share capital Rs. 49.94 Lakhs
6 Reserves & surplus Rs. (49.88) Lakhs
7 Total assets Rs. 0.12 Lakhs
8 Total liabilities Rs. 0.06 Lakhs
9 Investments Nil
10 Turnover Nil
11 Profit before taxation Rs. (1.07) Lakhs
12 Provision for taxation Nil
13 Profit after taxation Rs. (1.07) Lakhs
14 Proposed Dividend Nil
15 % of shareholding 88.04%
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FORM AOC - 1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Part “B”: Associate companies/joint ventures

ANNEXURE 1

sl. Name of Associates / AVT Natural ATMcComick | Midland Corporate
No. Joint Ventures Products Ltd. Ingredients Advisory Services
Private Ltd. Pvt. Ltd.
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March 2022 31st March 2022 31st March 2022
2. Share of Associate / Joint Venture held
by the Company on the year end
(i)  Number 4,54,52,175 58,50,000 2,50,000
(i) Amount of Investment in
Associates / Joint Venture (Amt. in Rs.Lakhs) 2,464.32 585.00 25.00
(iii) Extend of Holding % 29.85% 27.08 % 32.89%
3 Description of how there is significant More than 20% of the Total Share Capital of the Associate Concern is
influence held by The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited
4 Reason why the associate / joint venture The Accounts of Associates have been consolidated
is not consolidated
5. Networth attributable to shareholding as 10,944.87 6,122.21 17.67
per latest audited Balance Sheet (Amt. in Rs Lakhs)
- 6. Profit / Loss for the year
i.  Considered in Consolidation (Amt. in Rs.Lakhs) 2,148.31 843.21 9.96
ii.  Not Considered in Consolidation Nil Nil Nil
Total Networth of the company (Amt. in Rs.Lakhs) 36,666.20 22,607.88 53.71
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ANNEXURE- 2
Conservation of Energy

The information under Section 134 (3 (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules,
2014 for the year ended March 31, 2022 is given here below and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Ltd. is committed to conserve energy in all our activities. We have been adopting

energy conservation measures for many years. The following energy saving measures have been adopted at Arnakal Tea factory:-

L.

R RN R

In Thermax heaters, old ID fan motors were replaced with new IE3 motors to reduce the power consumption.
Installed 25 KVar Capacitors — 4 Nos in Automatic Power Factor Control Panel (APFC) to improve the power factor.
Internal capacitors — 10 KVar 5 Nos. and 12.5 KVar 1 No. were changed in factory to improve the power factor.
We have replaced the Conventional Tube lights with LED lights for reducing power consumption.

Drier feed vibratory system changed to conveyor type with a reduction of 5 Hp energy requirement.

3 Nos of old water supply pumps and 2 Nos of Irrigation pumps were replaced with energy efficient IE3 motors to reduce
power consumption.

The following energy saving measures have been adopted at Perinaad Estate:-

1.
2.
3.

In Heater Hot Air Blower motor replaced with new IE3 motor to reduce the power consumption
Replaced CFL light and tube lights (FTL) with LED lights for saving power consumption.

Internal capacitor 10 kvr 2 numbers were changed to improve the power factor.

ANNEXURE- 3
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties which is not at arm’s length
during financial year 2021- 2022.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(Details are given in Annexure 3A )

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajit Thomas
Chennai Chairman
26.07.2022 DIN : 00018691
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FORM AOC -2

ANNEXURE 3 A

. . Dateof | Amount
- Nature of Duration of Amount Salient Paid as
Name of the Company Nature of Relationship Transaction Transactions Rs. Terms Approval by [ 44 .
the Board if any
A. V. Thomas & Co. Ltd. Common Control through Sale of Tea On going transactions | 29,73,24,898 | MarketRate | NotApplicable Nil
constitution of Board / Share holding
A. V. Thomas & Co. Ltd. Common Control through Purchae/Warehousing& | On going transactions 3,84,340 | MarketRate | NotApplicable Nil
constitution of Board / Share holding | C & F Charges
AVT Natural Products Ltd Common Control through Sale of Tea On going transactions 11,45,000 | MarketRate | NotApplicable Nil
constitution of Board / Share holding
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd. Common Control through Saleof Pepper | On going transactions 21,82,950 | MarketRate | NotApplicable Nil
constitution of Board / Share holding
Midland Corporate Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. Common Control through Professional Charges | On going transactions 6,00,000 | MarketRate | NotApplicable Nil
constitution of Board / Share holding




ANNEXURE 4

FORM NO. MGT-7

[Pursuant to sub-Section(1) of section 92 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of

Annual Return
(other than OPCs and Small

rule 11of the Companies (Management and Companies)
Administration) Rules, 2014]
Form language (@) English () Hindi
Refer the instruction kit for filing the form.
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) *Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company U25191KL1937PLC000691
Global Location Number (GLN) of the Company
*Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the Company AAACTS8098G
(ii) (a) Name of the company THE MIDLAND RUBBER AND PRODUCE CO. LTD
(b) Registered office address
NO 27/1032, PANAMPILLY NAGAR
ERNAKULAM - 682036
KERALA, INDIA
(c) *e-mail ID of the company secmidland@avtplantations.co.in
(d) *Telephone number with STD code 04842315312
(e) Website
(iii) Date of Incorporation 24/02/1937
(iv) Type of the Company Category of the Company Sub-category of the Company
Public Company Company limited by shares Indian Non-Government company
(v) Whether company is having share capital ® Yo O No
(vi) *Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) O Ye ® No
(b) CIN of the Registrar and Transfer Agent U67120TN1998PLC041613
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Name of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Registered office address of the Registrar and Transfer Agents

“SUBRAMANIAN BUILDING” NO.1 CLUB HOUSE ROAD, CHENNAI, TAMILNADU 600 002 INDIA

(vii) *Financial year From date | 01/04/2021 (DD/MM/YYYY) Todate | 31/03/2022 (DD/MM/YYYY)

(viii) *Whether Annual general meeting (AGM) held OYs @No
@) Ifyes-DacofAGM [ ]
(b) Due date of AGM
() Whether any extension for AGM was granted OYs @®No

(d) Specify the reasons for not holding the same

AGM will be held on  15.09.2022

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

*Number of business activities

[ ]

. . Description of . .. 9% of turnover
1\5]:)' N;:;:‘gzz‘é:y Main Activity Busmgé\:ﬂwty Description of Business Activity of the
group company
1 A Agriculture, Al Production of crops and animals 100
forestry, fishing

I1I. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

(INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES)

*No. of Companies for which information is to be given

St i e Gy CINTECRN | | S
1 |AVT Natural Products Ltd L15142TN1986PLC012780 ASSOCIATE 29.85
2 |Midland Corporate Advisory Services Pvt.Led [ U65993TN2005PTC055807 ASSOCIATE 32.89
3 |AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd U51225TN1993PTC026433 ASSOCIATE 27.08
4 |Midland Latex Products Ltd U25199KL1984PLC013414 SUBSIDIARY 88.04

IV. SHARE CAPITAL, DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

(i) *SHARE CAPITAL
a) Equity Share Capital

Total number of equity shares 6,25,000

3,89,083.5

3,89,083.5

3,89,083.5

62,50,000 38,90,835

Total amount of equityshares (in Rupees) 38,90,835

38,90,835
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Number of classes

Number of equity shares

6,25,000 3,89,083.5 3,89,083.5 3,89,083.5
Nominal value per share (in rupees) 10 10 10 10
Total amount of equity shares (in rupees) 62,50,000 38,90,835 38,90,835 38,90,835
b) Preference Share Capital
Tortal number of preference shares 3,75,000 0
Total amount of preference shares (in rupees) | 37,50,000 0

Number of classes

Number of preferenceshares 3,75,000 0 0 0
Nominal value pershare (in rupees) 10 10 10 10
Total amount of preference shares (in rupees) 37,50,000 0 0 0

o) Unclassified Share Capital

Total amount of unclassified shares

Exquity Shares

d) Break-up of paid-up share capital

Physical

Demat

Total

At the beginning of the year

32,554.5

3,56,529

3,89,083.5

38,90,835

38,90,835

Increase during the year

1,875

1,875

18,750

18,750

(i) . PublicIssues

(i) Rights Issue

(i) BonusIssue

(iv) Private Placement /Preferential dllotment-

(v) ESOPs

(vi) Sweat Equity shares allotred

(vii) Conversion of Preference shares

(viii) Conversion of Debentures

(x) GDRs/ADRs

clo|o|lo|o|o|o|o|o

o|lo|o|lo|o|o|o|o|O

o|lo|(o|lc|loc|o|o|o|o

olo|o|Q|o|oc|o|o|o

(x) Others, specify

DEMAT

o|lo|lo|Q|e|o|e|o|o|o|o

1,875

1,875

18,750

18,750

o|lo|lo|loc|oc|lo|lo|C|IC|OC|O




Decrease during the year

1,875

1,875

18,750

18,750

(i) Buy-back of shares

0

0

0

0

(i) Shares forfeitured

0

0

0

0

(i) Reduction of share capital

0

0

0

0

(iv) Others, specify

DEMAT

1,875

clo|loco|jlo |

1,875

18,750

18,750

Clo|lo|l|o

At the end of the year

30,679.5

3,58,404

3,89,083.5

38,90,835

38,90,835

o

Preference Shares

At the beginning of the year

Increase during the year

(i) Issues of shares

(i1) Re-issue of forfeited shares

ocl|loc|lo | o

[T I = I — I =

o|le|lo|o

(=T I = i — I =

(— T =1 O — T =

o |loc|o | o

(iii) Others, specify

Decrease during the year

(i) Redemption of shares

(ii) Shares forfeited

(iii) Reduction of share capital

(=R =T = O =]

(=T I T I~ ]

c|lo|lo o

(=T I — T =T

oclo|o |

(=1 == =]

(iv) Others, specify

At the end of the year

0

ISIN of the equity shares of the Company

(i) Details of stock split / consolidation during the year (for each class of shares):-

INE828E01018

Class of Shares

@

(i)

(iii)

Before split/
Consolidation

Number of shares

Face value per share

After split/

Number of shares

Consolidation

Face value per share

23




(iii) Details of shares/Debentures Transfers since closure date of last financial year (or in the case of the first return at any time
since the incorporation of the company) *

-l
[Details being provided in a CD/Digital Media] O Yes ® No QO NotApplicate
Separate sheet attached for details of transfer ® Yes O No

Note : In case list of transfer exceeds 10, option for submission as a separate sheet attachment or submission in a CD/Digital
Media may be shown (will be artached while filing with Registrar of Companies)

Date of the previous annual general meeting 27109/2021

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year)

Type of transfer 1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares, 3 - Debentures, 4 — Stock
Number of Shares/ Debentures/ Amount per Share/
Units Transferred Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)

Ledger Folio of Transferor

Transferor’s Name

Surname middle name first name
Ledger Folio of Transferee
Transferee’s Name

Surname middle name first name

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year)

Type of transfer 1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares, 3 - Debentures, 4 — Stock
Number of Shares/ Debentures/ Amount per Share/
Units Transferred Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)
Ledger Folio of Transferor
Transferor’s Name

Surname middle name first name
Ledger Folio of Transferee

Transferee’s Name

Surname middle name first name
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(iv) *Debentures (Outstanding as at the end of financial year)

_ ) Nominal value
Particulars Number of units - Total value
Non-convertible debentures 0 0 0
Partly convertible debentures 0 0 0
Fully convertible debentures 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0
Details of Debentures
Outstanding as at i D Outstanding as at
Class of debentures the beginning of . . the end of
heven during theyear | during the year the year
Non-convertible debentures 0 0 0 0
Partly convertible debentures 0 0 0 0
Fully convertible debentures 0 0 0 0
(v) Securities (other than shares and debentures) 0 —I
oo 5 Nominal Value Total Nominal Paid up Value of Total Paid up
. of Sec .
Type of Securities | No. of Securities of each Unit Value each Unit Value
Total

V.

(i) Turnover

(i) Networth of the Company

*Turnover and net worth of the company (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013)

[ 50,55,74,045

|

[ 1,77.97,63,121

]

VI. (a) *SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Promoters

S Equity Preference
No. Category Number of P Number of P
Shares ereentage Shares eroentage
1 Individual/ Hindu UndividedFamily
() Indian 3,17,646 81.64 0
(i) Non - resident Indian (NRI) 0 0 0
(i) Foreign national (otherthan NRI) 0 0 0
2 Government
(i) Central Government 0 0 0
(ii) State Government 0 0 0
(iii) Government companies 0 0 0
3 Insurance companies 0 0 0
4 Banks 0 0 0
5 Financial institutions 0 0 0
6 Foreign institutional investors 0 0 0
7 Mutual funds 0 0 0
8 Venture capital 0 0 0
9 Body corporate(not mentioned above) 0 0 0
10 Others
Total 3,17,646 81.64 0 0

Total number of shareholders (promoters)
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(b) *SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Public / Other than promoters

S Equity Preference
N(.). Category Number of m— Number of —
Shares Shares
1 Individual / Hindu Undivided Family
(i) Indian 49,234.5 12.66 0
(i) Non - resident Indian (NRI) 675 0.17 0
(iif) Foreign national (other thanNRI) 0 0 0
2 Government
(i) Central Government 1,475 0.38 0
(i) State Government 0 0 0
(iii) Government companies 0 0 0
3 Insurance companies 0 0 0
4 Banks 1,262 0.32 0
5 Financial institutions 1,687 0.43 0
6 Foreign institutional investors 0 0 0
7 Mutual funds 0 0 0
8 Venture capital 0 0 0
9 Body corporate(not mentioned above) 1,534 0.39 0
10 Others [EPEHUETRUST 15,570 4.01 0
Total 71,437.5 18.36 0 0
Total number of shareholders (other than promoters) 250
Total number of shareholders (Promoters + Public / 251
other than promoters)

VII. *NUMBER OF PROMOTERS, MEMBERS, DEBENTURE HOLDERS

(Details, Promoters, Members (other than promoters), Debenture holders

Promoters
Members(other than promoters) 254 250
Debenture holders 0 0
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VIII. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(A) *Composition of Board of Directors

Number of directorsat the | Number of directorsatthe | Percentage of shares held by
Category beginning of the year end of the year directors as at the end of year
Executive | Non-Execunve | Executive | Non-Execunve | Executive | Non-Executve
A. Promoter 0 1 0 1 0 81.64
B. Non-Promoter 0 B 0 K 0 0.02
() Non-Independent 0 3 0 3 0 0.02
(i) Independent 0 1 0 1 0 0

C. NomineeDirectors
Representing 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Banks & Fls 0 0 0 0 0 0
(ii) Investing institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Government 0 0 0 0 0 0
(iv) Small shareholders 0 0 0 0 0 0
(v) Others 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 5 0 5 0 81.66

Number of Directors and Key managerial personnel (who is not director) as on the financial year end date
(B) i) *Details of directors and Key managerial personnel as on the closure of financial year

Name DIN/PAN | Designation N‘ﬁl‘;ﬁ‘}:i‘y l();rt;f iﬁfﬁ?ﬁf?
financial year : if any)
AJITTHOMAS 00018691 Disectos 3,17,646
SHANTHI THOMAS 00567935 |  Director 0
APPARANDA DEVAIAH BOPANA 00576066 |  Director 0
RAMASWAMY VENUGOPALAN 00704982 |  Director 100
SWAMINATHAN GANESAN 08588380 |  Director 0

i) Particulars of change in director(s) and Key managerial personnel during the year

[ o ]

Designation at the | Date of appointment Nature of change
Name DIN/PAN beginning / during | change in designation | (Appointment / Change in
the financial year [ cessation designation / Cessation)
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IX. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/BOARD/COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A. MEMBERS/CLASS/REQUISITIONED/NCLT/COURT CONVENED MEETINGS

Number of meetings held E

I Total Number of Artendance
Type of meeting iraentit Membe;s ennt.icd o Nuiabeiof % of iocal
aend meeting | members attended shareholding
Annual General Meeting 27109/2021 255 9 84.03
B. BOARD MEETINGS
Number of meetings held
S, Total Number of directors Attendance
No. Date of meeting associated as on the Number of % ok
date of meeting directors attended attendance
1 26/04/2021 5 3 60
2 19/08/2021 5 5 100
3 15/12/2021 5 - 80
4 08/02/2022 5 4 80
C. COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of meetings held | 4 |
Total Number of P
S. : Date of Members as
No. Type of meeting meeting on the date of Number of % of
the meeting | members attended artendance
1 | Stakeholders Relationship Committee | 21/04/2021 3 2 66.67
2 | Stakeholders Relationship Committee 27/09/2021 3 2 66.67
3 | Stakeholders Relationship Committee | 23/11/2021 3 2 66.67
4 | Stakeholders Relationship Committee | 12/01/2022 3 3 100




D. *ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

Board Meetings Committee Meetings Wiheikier
Number of Numbe Number of i attended AGM
S. i umbet i WHDEE held
Name of the Director rncct‘lngs of % of mccrimgs oF % of cldon
No. which - larersda] Which . e
director was |T€CUNES o director was rnccn:f; i
entitled to attended entitled o [*" (Y/N/NA)
attend attend
1 AJIT THOMAS 4 4 100 4 4 100
2 SHANTHITHOMAS 4 3 75 4 4 100 ACKM 6 be
3 | APPARANDA DEVAIAH BOPANA 4 2 50 4 1 25 held on
15/09/2022
4 RAMASWAMY VENUGOPALAN 4 3 75 0 0 0
5 SWAMINATHAN GANESAN 4 4 100 0 0 0
X *REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
[_Ini
Number of Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager whose remuneration EI
derails to be entered
Stock
S. ion/
No. Name Designation | Gross Salary | Commission OS‘::;[ Others Total Amount
equity
1 0
Total 0

Number of CEO, CFO and Company secretary whose remuneration details to be entered

[ o]

Stock
S. L a5 Option/
No, Name Designation | Gross Salary | Commission ng:u Others Total Amount
equity
1 0
Total 0
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Number of other directors whose remuneration details to be entered

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year

B. IfNo, give reasons/observations

XII. PENALTY AND PUNISHMENT - DETAILS THEREOF

Stock
fi. Name Designation glr:s; Commission OS}::’] ::j Others AI:::ilnr
equity
1 | AJIT THOMAS Director 0 0 0 40,000 40,000
2 | SHANTHI THOMAS Director 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
3 | APPARANDADEVAIAHBOPANA |  Director 0 0 0 20,000 20,000
4 | RAMASWAMY VENUGOPALAN Director 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
5 | SWAMINATHAN GANESAN Director 0 0 0 40,000 40,000
Total 0 0 0 1,60,000 1,60,000
XI. MATTERS RELATED TO CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES
*A Whether the company has made compliances and disclosures in respect of ® Yes O No

(A) DETAILS OF PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT IMPOSED ON COMPANY/DIRECTORS /OFFICERS

X i

Name of the Name of the court/ Name of the Act and Detailsof | Details of appeal
. Date of ; : ; : ;
company/directors/ concerned Orde section under which penalty/ (ifany) including
officers Authority r penalised /punished punishment present status
(B) DETAILS OF COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES g Nil
Name o_f the Name of the court/ Date of Nan.le of the Act @d Part of Amount c?f
company/directors/ concerned Ord section under which offence compounding
officers Authority ol offence committed (in Rupees)
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XIII. Whether complete list of shareholders, debenture holders has been enclosed as an attachment
® Ys QO No
(will be attached while filing with Registrar of Companies)
XIV. COMPLIANCE OF SUB-SECTION (2) OF SECTION 92, IN CASE OF LISTED COMPANIES

In case of a listed company or a company having paid up share capital of Ten Crore rupees or more or turnover of Fifty Crore
rupees or more, details of company secretary in whole time practice certifying the annual return in Form MGT-8.

Name

Whether associate or fellow O Associate Q Fellow
Certificate of practice number |:|

1/ We certify that:

() The return states the facts, as they stood on the date of the closure of the financial year aforesaid correctly and adequarely.

(b) Unless otherwise expressly stated to the contrary elsewhere in this Return, the Company has complied with all the
provisions of the Act during the financial year.
Declaration
Iam Authorised by the Board of Directors of the company vide resolution no. | |dated| |

(DD/MM/YYYY) to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been compiled with. I further
declare that:

1. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material
to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the
company.

2. All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

Note: Attention is also drawn to the provisions of Section 447, section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which
provide for punishment for fraud, punishment for false statement and punishment for false evidence respectively.

To be digitally signed by

Director

DIN of the director
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To be digitally signed by

QO Company Secretary

O Company Secretary in Practice

Membership number Certificare of practice number

Attachments List of attachments

1. List of share holders, debenture holders
2. Copyof MGT-8

3. Optional Attachment(s), if any

Note: The above Annual Return (MGT-7) is prepared as on March 31, 2022 as per the new format prescribed by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021. The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is scheduled to be held on
September 15, 2022. The Company would file the duly completed Annual Return (MGT-7) along with the Form MG T-8 duly signed
by the Practicing Company Secretary certifying the Annual Return (MG1-7) after the completion of AGM.
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ANNEXURE 5

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy the Company - Notapplicable

The Company has undertaken activities relating to the following areas for the financial year 2021-22.
i Promotion of Health Care
ii. Promoting Social and Economic Development.
iii. Activities envisaged in the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee — Not applicable
Since the CSR amount required to be spent by the Company during the Financial Year 2021-2022 was less than Rs. 50 lakhs,

the CSR functions had been discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company in pursuance of the provisions of Section 135
(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended.

3. Details of the weblink where composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are
disclosed on the website of the Company- The details of CSR amount spent by the Company during the Financial Year 2021-
2022 are separately mentioned in this Report.

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. - Not Applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

(Rupees in Lakhs)
SIL . Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off
No. Lo preceding financial years for the financial year, if any
1 2021-22 NIL NIL

(Rupees in Lakhs)
6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) 380.75
7 (a). Two percent of average net profit of the Company as perSection 135(5) 7.62
7 (b). Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years NIL
7 (c). Amount required to be set off for the financial year. NIL
7 (d). Total CSR obligation for the financial year 7.62

8 (a). CSRamountspent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent
Total Amount i
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR uﬁg:g:;;ﬂfg;im::y ﬁmj SPCCI-ﬁEd
Birancial Year Account as per Section 135(6) Secti {J 35 g;on prviRg e
ecrion
(in Rs. Lakhs)
Amount Date of transfer | Name of the fund Amount Date of transfer
7.64 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b). Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year : NIL
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(c). Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

lemfrom | Local | Location of the project | ™% | Mode Modeof lmp lern@mion
SIL. Name of the the list of area P spent for of imple- through Implementing Agency
No. Project activitiesin | (Yes/ thf project g CSR
Schedule VII No) State District (inRs. tion Direct | Name Registration
to the Act. Lakhs) Number
1 | Takingcareof | Promoting | No Maharashtra | Mumbai | 5.00 No The CSR00003672
aged'p_eoplc and | Social & Society
Fro;ldlng them | Economic afita
00d, stay, D. lop-
fulfiling their | o " ':‘":l‘l“
basic needs and g
taking care of Aged, .
the sick and Mumbai
bed-ridden
2 | Supporttoold | Promoting | No Karnataka | Bangalore | 2.00 No Licde | CSR00003755
age home Social & sisters
Economic of the
Develop- poor
ment
3 Providing Free | Promoting | No Kerala Trivandrum | 0.64 No Ardram | CSR00025556
accommodation | Health Chari-
for poor patients | Care table
and by-standers Trust
Support for
purchase of
Ambulance
TOTAL 7.64
d. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads NIL
Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NA
Total amount spent for the Financial Year (in Rs. Lakhs) 7.64
g Excessamount for set off, if any
SI 5 Amount
: Particulars
No. (Rs. Lakhs)
i | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) 7.62
i | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7.64
ii | Excessamount spent for the Financial Year 0.02
iv | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, ifany NIL
v | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 0.02
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9(a). Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL
9(b). Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NIL.

10. Details relating to the asset created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.- No capital assets were created or
acquired through CSR fund during the financial year 2021-22.

11. Reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5).- NA

During the year, the Company has spent an amount of Rs.7.64 lakhs instead of spending the required amount of Rs.7.62
lakhs. There is no shortfall, and the company intends to set off the additional amount of Rs. 0.02 Lakhs to the succeeding
financial years.

Since the CSR amount required to be spent by the Company during the Financial Year 2021-2022 was less than Rs. 50 lakhs,
the CSR functions had been discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company in pursuance of the provisions of Section
135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajit Thomas
Chennai Chairman
26.07.2022 DIN : 00018691
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

REPORT

To the members of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of The
Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited, Kochi (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st
March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss, and
statement of cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013.Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalore Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
management report, its annexures, Board’s Report including
annexures, Director’s Responsibility statement, but does not
include the standalone Financial Statements and our Audit
Report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
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statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidarte the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obrain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
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may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by The Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give an Annexure A, a
Statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of
the said order, to the extent applicable

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audir.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts
of the company.



(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on 31*March 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
our separate report in Annexure B;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has not made any payments which are
covered under section 197 read with Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i The company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements -Refer Note 27(b) to the
financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at
March 31, 2022.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermcdiaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing
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or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to
the bestof its  knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The final dividend proposed in the previous
year, declared and paid by the Company during
the year and the interim dividend declared and
paid by the Company during the year and until
the date of this report are in compliance with
Section 123 of the act.

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company
have proposed final dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount
of dividend proposed is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.004283S

G. Rengarajan
Partner
Membership No. 219922

26.07.2022 UDIN: 22219922ANRBDP1524



ANNEXURE A TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To the members of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of the company on the financial statements
for the year ended 31st March 2022, we report that:

i)

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assets.

B. The company does not have any intangible assets
and hence clause (i)(a)(B) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical
verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets
are verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. In our
opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. \

(c) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of the
immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the company is the lessee and the
lease agreement are in favour of lessee) disclosed in
the Financial Statements are held in the name of the
company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) during the year.

(¢) Based on the information and explanations given to
us, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2022 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Physical verification of inventory has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. We were
informed that, no material discrepancies in excess of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book
records have been properly dealt in the books of
accounts.
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iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

(b) According to the information and explanation given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not been
sanctioned overdraft limit of more than five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. Hence, reporting of
submission of the monthly returns or statements filed
by the company with such banks are not applicable.

The Company has made investments in Companies
and the same are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest. According to the information and explanation
given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not provided
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties
during the year. Accordingly Para 3 (iii) (a) to () of the
Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records,
the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security as specified under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits under the directives of
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,
where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the
books of accounts relating to materials, labour and other
items of cost maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
prescribed by the Central Government for the
maintenance of the cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and cost records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not carried out any derailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete



vii) a) According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance Fund, Income Tax, Goods
and Service Tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. No undispured statutory dues were
ourtstanding as at the last day of the financial year for
a period of more than 6 months from the date they
became payable.

b) The details of Disputed Statutory dues which have

not been paid are as under:
Amount paid
Name of the | Nature of | Amount | ypder p,gm Fod?lﬁ‘;hﬁm
Disputed | pending final :
Statute the dues P - pending
Kerala General | KGST/CSTforthe | 10,29,744 Nil Assistant
Sales Tax Act Assessment year Commissioner
2002/03 & 2004/05
Central Sale Assessment years 35,88,239 10,50,000 | Deputy
Tax Act 1998/99, 1999-2000 Commissioner
2002/03, 2004/05 Appeals
2016/17 & 2017/18

viii) Based on the information and explanation given to us,
and based on the records verified by us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

ix) a) Based on the information and explanations given to
us and based on our verification of books of accounts,
the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

b) Based on the explanation and information given to
us, the Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

) Based on the explanation and information given to
us, the company has not obtained any term loan and
hence clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) Based on the information and explanation given to
us and based on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligation of
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

f) The company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligation of
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

x) a) The company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly Para 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b) During the year, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

xi) a) Based on the examination of the books and records
of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there was no fraud by
the Company and no fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

b) Based on the information and explanation given to
us and based on the examination of the company’s
records, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government during the year and upto
the date of this report.

¢) The company does not fall within the ambit of the
provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act
2013 regarding Vigil Mechanism. Accordingly, clause
3(xi)(c) of the Order pertaining to whistle blower
complaints is not applicable.
xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly
Para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to applicable transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable Accounting Standards. Section
177 of the Companies Act is not applicable.



xiv) a) In our opinion, based on the information and
explanation given to us, section 138 of the companies
act is not applicable to the company. However,
according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

b) We have considered the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit

xv) Based on the information and explanations given to us
and based on the audit the books of accounts, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the order is not applicable.

¢) The company is a not Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India and hence clause 3(xvi)(c)
and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year and accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our artention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet
darte. We, however, state thar this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Inouropinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies
Act 2013 pursuant to any project. According clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.004283S

G. Rengarajan

Partner

Membership No. 219922

UDIN: 22219922ANRBDP1524

Chennai
26.07.2022



ANNEXURE B TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To the members of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE
COMPANY LIMITED (‘the Company’) as of 31-March-
2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on thart dace.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thar
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gencraﬁy accepted
accounting principles, and thart receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree 0? compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over fel:incia.l
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31-Mar-2022 based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.0042838

O e

Membership No. 219922
UDIN: 22219922ANRBDP1524

Chennai
26.07.2022



BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 st March 2022

Figures as at the Figures as at the
Particulars Notes end of 31.03.2022 end of 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 38.91 38.91
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 17,758.72 16,739.64
17,797.63 16,778.55
(2) Non - Current Liabilities 4 =
(a) Long- term provisions 11.75 7.02
11.75 7.02
(3) Current Liabilities 5
(a) Short Term Borrowings - -
(b) Trade Payables
- Total outstanding dues of Micro
Enterprises and small enterprises ; and 7.80 11.86
- Total outstanding dues of Creditors other
than Micro Enterprises and small enterprises 298.49 403.30
(c) Other Current Liabilities 322.88 300.12
(d) Short -Term Provisions 602.51 596.05
1,231.68 1,311.33
TOTAL 19,041.06 18,096.90
II. ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property, Plantand Equipment 6 1,102.45 1,080.21
(i1) Capital Work in Progress
(a) Bearer Plants 7 166.87 184.45
(b) Others - 45.46
1,269.32 1,310.12
(b) Non - current Investments 8 5,766.40 6091.32
() Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 31 68.41 80.41
(d) Other non - current assets 10 21.09 21.09
5,855.90 6,192.82
(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 9 7Za71L.1Y 8,775.47
(b) Inventories 11 431.04 480.44
(c) Trade Receivables 12 100.98 310.94
(d) Cashand Cash equivalents 13 3,536.92 312.53
(¢) Short- term Loans and advances 14 675.71 714.35
(f) Other current assets - Accrued Income - 0.23
11,915.84 10,593.96
Significant Accounting Policies 1
TOTAL 19,041.06 18,096.90

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Vide our report of date attached
For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0042835
G. Rengarajan
Partner
Membership No. 219922

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.07.2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Ganesan
Director
DIN : 08588380

Ajit Thomas
Chairman

DIN : 00018691
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
For the Year Ended 315t March 2022

Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars Notes year ended 31.03.2022 year ended 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
I Revenue from operations 15 5,055.74 6,247.32
I Otherincome 16 1,158.11 748.32
Il  Total Revenue (I+ID) 6,213.85 6,995.64
IV Expenses:
Cost of material consumed 17 988.00 1,199.18
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 18 0.77 0.98
Changes in Inventory of Finished goods,
work in progress and stock-in-trade 19 (+) 82.57 ) 34.45
Other Manufacturing Expenses 20 920.57 942.87
Employee benefits expenses 21 2,500.53 2,680.03
Finance cost 22 1.37 0.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 223.06 166.43
Other Expenses 23 471.45 488.40
Total expenses 5,188.32 5,444.21
V  Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV) 1,025.53 1,551.43
VI Exceptional items 35 566.04 -
VII  Extraordinary items - -
VIII Profit Before Tax (V-VI-VII) 1,591.57 1,551.43
IX Tax Expense
Current tax 260.00 244.00
Deferred tax 12.00 (15.89)
Profit After Tax (VIII-IX) 1,319.57 1,323.28
XI  Earnings per Share (In Rs.) 27
(1) Basic 339.13 340.10
(2) Diluted 339.13 340.10
Face value per ordinary share - Rs. 10
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Vide our report of date attached
For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 004283S
G. Rengarajan S. Ganesan Ajit Thomas
Place : Chennai Partner Director Chairman
Date : 26.07.2022 Membership No. 219922 DIN : 08588380 DIN : 00018691




CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st March 2022
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Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nert Profit before tax and extraordinary items 1,025.53 1,551.43
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 223.06 166.42
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 2.84 1.95
Profit /(Loss) on sale of Assets (603.52) (6.04)
Profit on sale of Investments (448.96) (68.35)
Provision for Gratuity (55.91) 80.70
Provision for Leave Encashment (6.62) 3.97
Interest Received (42.18) (3.33)
Dividend / Investment income Received (614.92) (614.37)
Interest Paid 0.79 0.77
Dimunition in value of Investments 10.87 (29.83)
Capitalisation of Bearer Plants 12.07
Operating Profit before working capital changes: (496.95) 1,083.32
Adjustments for:
Trade and other Receivables 209.96 (146.08)
Inventories 49.40 (18.75)
Trade Payables (86.11) (156.81)
Other Current Assets (2,009.17) (32.12)
(1,835.92)
Cash generated from operations (2,332.87) 729.56
Direct Taxes Paid (251.99) (231.83)
Cash flow before extraordinary items (2,584.86) 497.73
Extraordinary Items Nil Nil
Net cash from operating activities (2,584.86) 497.73
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (434.74) (388.35)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 276.73 47.72
Purchase of Investments (4,194.99) (5,737.66)
Capital advance for Purchase of Property - -
Sale of Investments ( Net Of Taxes) 7.246.56 4,506.39
Sale of Rubber Trees (Net of Replanting Expenditure) (11.52) (19.62)
Interest Received 42.18 3.33
Dividend / Investment income Received 1,063.88 682.72
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities 3988.10 (950.47)




CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March 2022 - Contd.

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid
Dividend Paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year

(0.79) (0.77)
(291.81) (194.54)
(292.60) (195.31)
1,110.64 (603.05)

17.62 620.67
1,128.26 17.62
1,110.64 (603.05)

Vide our report of date attached

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 004283S

G. Rengarajan
Place : Chennai Partner
Date : 26.07.2022 Membership No. 219922

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Ganesan Ajit Thomas
Director Chairman
DIN : 08588380 DIN : 00018691




NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background: The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India during the year 1937 and has its
registered office at Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Kerala, India. The Company is engaged in Plantation activity and the crop dealt with
by the company is Tea, Rubber and Cardamom. The main business being Cultivation, Manufacturing and sales of Tea, Rubber and
Cardamom.

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

All assets and liabilities has been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (12 months)
and other criteria set out in Schedule I11 to the Act.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

L.

I1.

I11.

a)

b)

0

d)

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss based on
cost model.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

i. itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise; and

ii. the costof the item can be measured reliably

Cost includes tax (but does not include GST credit is available), freight and other direct or allocated expenses during
construction period, net of any income earned. Assets acquired on Hire Purchase are capitalized at principal value.

Direct Expenditure on replanting of Tea/Rubber/Cardamom attributable to bringing the bearer plant to the condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management less Subsidy on replanting of Tea/
Rubber/Cardamom are capitalised as Bearer Plants.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [other than bearer plants (rubber trees, tea bushes and cardamom plants)
which are depreciated using straight line method] has been charged as per the useful life specified in Schedule 11 of
Companies Act 2013, except Assets costing individually less than Rs.5,000/- which are depreciated at 100 %. The
residual value is considered at 5 % of the original cost of Plant, property and equipment. Depreciation for assets purchased/
sold during the period is proportionately charged.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated under the written down value method [other than bearer plants (rubber
trees, tea bushes and cardamom plants) which are depreciated using straight line method] over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which are different from the lives prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

Useful life adopted by the Company for bearer plants is as follows:

Asset category Useful lives (in years)
Bearer plants — Cardamom Plants 12
Bearer plants - Rubber trees 30
Bearer plants - Tea bushes 50

Intangible assets amortized over their respective individual useful lives on straight line basis, commencing from the
date the asset is available to the company for its use. Depreciation and Amortization methods, useful lives and residual
value are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

47



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd.)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

V.

VIL.

VIIIL

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets for any possible impairment at each balance sheet date. An impairment
loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, ifany, is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
the cost of the asset, upto the date of acquisition/completion of construction. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense
as and when incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use of sale.

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Decline in value of long term investments, other than temporary, is provided for.
Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Investment in immovable properties is stated at cost less
depreciation.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lower of cost on weighted average and net realisable value, after providing for obsolescence wherever
considered necessary. Cost includes tax (other than GST credit is available), freight and other direct expenses.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized on accrual and when no significant uncertainty on measurability or collectability exists. Expenditure is
accounted for on their accrual.

SALE OF GOODS

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are
not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

INTEREST

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest
rate. Interest income is included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

DIVIDENDS

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Gratuity Liability which is a defined benefit scheme and provision for Leave Encashment is accrued and provided for on the
basis of independent actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss and are not deferred.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and Super Annuation Schemes, which are defined
contribution schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds

accrues.



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

X

XIIL.

XIIIL.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange in force at the time transactions are effected. In the case
of forward contracts, the difference between forward rate and exchange rate on the date of transaction is dealt with in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on the Completion of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and
outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are converted at the year end exchange rate and the resultant loss or gain is dealt with
in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Subsidies from Government in respect of fixed assets are deducted from the cost of respective assets as and when they accrue.

Subsidies related to revenue are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to match them with the related costs which
they are intended to compensate.

TAXES ON INCOME

Provision for Income-Tax is made for both current and deferred tax. Provision for current income tax is made on the
assessable income ar the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. Deferred tax is accounted for by computing the
tax effect of the timing difference which arise during the year and reverse out in the subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
calculated at the tax rates substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is
avirtual certainty that they will be realized.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

PROVISIONS

A Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimate are reviews at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncerrain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

CONTINGENT ASSETS
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed
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for the year ended 315t March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

XVIL

XVIIL

EXPENDITURE ON NEW PLANTING

Direct Expenditure on new planting of different crops (other than Minor Produce) including upkeep and maintenance
expenditure on immature plants are capitalised under “Development”.

EXPENDITURE ON REPLANTING

The upkeep and maintenance expenditure on immature plants is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

DIVIDEND

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash Flow Statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow
from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit is adjusted for the
effects of

i Transactions of a non-cash nature.

ii. Any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and

iii. Items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in Cash Flow Statement.
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NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 2
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorised
6,25,000- Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 62.50 62.50
3,75,000- 6 % Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 37.50 37.50
~100.00 "~ 100.00
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up
3,89,083.50 - Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 38.91 38.91
¢. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginnig
and at the end of the reporting year
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
Add / Less : Shares Issued / buyback etc Nil Nil
Number of shares at the end of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of
equity shares
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Mr. Ajit Thomas 3,17,646 81.64

e. No bonus shares | Buy back of shares in last 5 years

one vote in proportion to the number of shares held

i. Disclosure of Promoters Shareholding Pattern

3,17,596

81.63

The company has issued only one class of shares which is equity shares. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled for

Shares reserved under option and contract | commitments for sale of shares / disinvestments - Nil (Nil)
The aggregate value of calls unpaid (including Directors and Officers of the Company) - Nil (Nil)

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 % of
Promoter Name No. of No. of change during
shares held % of total shares shares held 9% of total shares e yeat
M. Ajit Thomas 3,17,646 81.64 % 3,17,596 81.63 % 0.01%
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NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 3
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Share Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet 27.20 27.20
Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 26.79 26.79
Rubber Replanting Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 9.68
Add : Sale Proceeds of Rubber Trees 14.08
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance Provided 2.84
26.60
Less : Expenditure of Replanting 25.60 1.00 9.68
General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 11,334.94
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 1,000.00
12,334.94 11,334.94
Surplus
Profit for the period 1,319.57 1,323.28
Add: Surplus brought forward from previous year 5,341.03 5,212.29
6,660.60 6,535.57
Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve 1,000.00 1,000.00
Final dividend for 2020-21- Paid on Equity shares Rs. 50/- per share
(Previous year - Nil per Share) 194.54
Interim dividend for 2021-22- Paid on Equity shares Rs. 25/- per share
(Previous year - Rs. 50/- per Share ) 97.27 _ 194.54
Surplus carried forward 5,368.79 5,341.03
17,758.72 16,739.64

52



NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 4
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Long - Term Provisions (Note 33)
Provision for Employee benefits
For Gratuity = -
For Leave Encashment B 11.75 7.02
11.75 7.02
NOTE : 5
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Short - Term borrowings - From Bank - Secured
The Company’s borrowing facilities comprising cash credit facility
of Rs. 1,50,00,000 secured by hypothecation of stock-in-Trade,
Standing Crops and Machinery in Tea and Rubber Factories, Vehicles
and also equitable mortgage of the Estates Land together with
Buildings thereon. Nil Nil
The loans have not been guaranteed by Directors or others.
Period and amount of default as on 31st March 2022 NIL (PY. NIL)
b. Trade Payable
(Refer Note No. 26 for details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises)
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises and 7.80 11.86
The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006” has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied
upon by the auditors.
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 298.49 403.30
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NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
The trade payables ageing schedule is as follows :
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars as on 31st March 2022 Total
Less than 1 year| 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 7.80 Nil Nil Nil 7.80
(i1) Others 298.49 Nil Nil Nil 298.49
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars as on 31st March 2021 Total
Less than 1 year| 1-2years 2-3years | More than 3 years
(i) MSME 11.86 Nil Nil Nil 11.86
(ii) Others 403.30 Nil Nil Nil 403.30
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c. Other Current Liabilities
Unpaid dividends 213.93 240.79
Statutory dues 38.62 39.33
Security Deposit 20.00 20.00
Advance from Customers 50.33 -
322.88 300.12
d Short - Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits : ( Note No. 33)
For Leave Encashment 2.81 14.16
For Gratuity 263.74 319.65
Other Provisions :
For Taxarion 335.96 262.24
602.51 596.05
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NOTES FORMING PART
NOTE : 6 of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Deductions As at Up to For Withdrawn Upto As at As at
Description 01.04.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 the year 31.3.2022 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Rs.inlakhs  Rs.in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs.in lakhs  Rs.inlakhs Rs.inlakhs  Rs.inlakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Freehold Land (Notei) 173.51 143.39 30.12 30.12 173.51
173.51 173.51 173.51 173.51
Development 138.79 138.79 138.79 138.79
138.79 138.79 138.79 138.79
Buildings (Notei) 474.26 48.15 6.72 515.69 343.68 14.67 6.72 351.63 164.06 130.57
470.02 4.23 474.25 329.72 13.96 343.68 130.57 140.30
Machinery 1,527.57 137.08 1,664.65 1,148.09 88.92 1,237.01 427.64 379.48
1,459.33 97.61 29.37 1,527.57 1,096.73 79.60 28.24 1,148.09 37948 36261
Furniture And Fittings 194.00 43.24 237.24 72.35 38.38 110.73 126.51 121.65
8223 111.77 194.00 65.63 672 72.35 121.65 16.61
Electrical Installations 113.16 113.16 83.09 7.50 90.59 22.57 30.08
95.27 17.89 113.16 78.52 4.56 83.08 30.08 16.74
Vehicles 284.54 199.71 110.91 373.34 178.41 65.11 55.70 187.82 185.52 106.13
277.74 6.80 284.54 134.35 44.06 17841 106.13 143.39
Bearer Plants - Cardamom 12.07 12.07 4.83 4.83 7.24 -
Total 2,905.83 440.25 261.02 3,085.06 1,825.62 219.41 62.42 1,982.61 1,102.45 1,080.21
Previous Year 2,696.89 238.30 2937 2,905.82 1,704.95 148.90 28.24 1,825.61 1,080.21 991.95

* Previous year's figures have been shown in Iralics

Notes : (i) Includes Rs.1.38 and Rs.12.33 lacs respectively representing Cost of Land and Buildings in joint ownership with other Companies, the book value of which
amounted to Rs.1.38 and Rs. 0.65 lacs respectively.

(i) The Company does not hold any lease hold properties

NOTE : 7
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Amount in CWIP for a period of 2021 - 22
CWIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total*
Projects in progress 25.54 34.75 33.04 73.54 166.87
Projects temporarily suspended

* There are no capital-work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan



NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 8

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. inlakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
1. INVESTMENTS IN NON CURRENT INSTRUMENTS :
(i) QUOTED :
In Equity Instruments:
AVT Nataral Products Ltd (Associate Company) (Rs. 1lshare)  4,54,52,175 2,464.32 4,54,52,175 2,464.32
Neelamalai agro Industries Ltd 8,526 119.92 20,019 713.55 28,545 833.47
Infosys Ltd (Rs.5/share) 1,612 22.53 1,612 22.53
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd (Rs. 1/share) 628 20.02 628 20.02
National Stock Exchange 10,000 280.04 10,000 280.04
Bajaj Finance Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 3 245 3 245
Deepak Fertilisers & Petro Chemicals Corporation Ltd 455 250 455 2.50
Deepak Nitrite Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 131 2.49 131 249
ICICI Bank Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 369 249 369 2.49
Larsen & Toubro Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 149 249 149 249
Persistant Systems Ltd 61 2.46 61 2.46
Tata Chemicals Lid 297 249 297 249
Tata Motors Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 619 2,50 619 2.50
Tata Power Company Ltd (Rs. 1/share) 1,132 250 1,132 2.50
2,584.24 1,058.51 3,642.75
In Structured Debt Products o -
Axis Finance Ltd 50 504.06 50.00 504.06 - -
L & T Housing Finance Ltd 50 503.97 50.00 503.97 - -
Tata Cleantech Capital Ltd 500 504.18 500.00 504.18 -
MindSpacr Business Perks REIT BR 50 502.30 50.00 502.30 - -
Bajaj Housing Finance Ltd 50 424.66 50 424.66
2,014.51 424,66 2,014.51 - 424.66
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NOTE : 8 (Contd...)

NOTES FORMING PART

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs
(if)UNQUOTED :
In Equity Instruments:
AV Thomas Investments Co Ltd 2.45 24,500 245
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd
(Associate Company) (*) 585.00 58,50,000 585.00
Midland Corporate Advisory Services Pvt Ltd
(Associate Company) (*) 25.00 2,50,000 25.00
Midland Latex Products Ltd
(Associate Company) 31.86 4,39,694 31.86
L.]. International Ltd (**) - 428 -
The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co Ltd 197.03 46,498 197.03
In Structured Debt Products (Unquoted):
HDB Financial Services Ltd 50 ~504.08 50 504.08
841.34 504.08 1,345.42
Diminution in Value (29.96) (1.90) (31.86)
811.38 502.18 1,313.56
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NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 9
CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE
Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount

shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. inlakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
1. INVESTMENTS IN CURRENT INSTRUMENTS :

(I) QUOTED:

In Equity Instruments:

Credit Access Grameen Ltd 2,850 20.03 3,358 20.02 6,208 40.05
Harrisons Malayalam Ltd 1,00,000 116.42 1,00,000 116.42 . -
Linde India Ltd 1,219 20.04 1,220 30.77 2,439 50.81
3M India Ltd 3 0.71 3 0.71
Aavas Financiers Ltd 65 1.57 65 1.57
Abbott India Ltd 4 0.73 4 0.73
Aegis Logistics L 525 1.07 525 1.07
Ajanta Pharma Ltd 64 1.22 64 1.22
Alembic Pharmaceuticals Ltd 40 0.30 40 0.30
Alkyl Amines Chemicals Ltd 43 1.27 43 1.27
Allcargo Logistics Ltd 1,175 3.96 1,175 3.96
Arvind Fashions Ltd 288 0.83 288 0.83
Asian Paints Ltd 93 2.87 93 2.87
Astral Ltd 154 3.28 154 3.28
Atul Led 21 1.86 21 1.86
Axis Bank Ltd 1,356 9.71 1,356 9.71
Bajaj Finanace Ltd 18 1.27 18 1.27
Bajaj Finserv Ltd 9 1.49 9 1.49
Bank Of Baroda 500 0.51 500 0.51
Bharti Airtel Ltd 291 2.06 291 2.06

Blue Dart Express Ltd 23 1.50 23 1.50
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NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 8 (Contd...)
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
2. PREFERENCE SHARES (FULLY PAID)
Beer Works Restaurants and Microbrewery Pvt Ltd
(Rs. 100/Share) 300 189.75 300 189.75
Virohan Pvt Ltd 134 49.95 134 49.95
189.75 49.95 239.70
3. IN IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES
Value of Land 106.30 106.30
Building (Including Fittings and Fixtures) 495.84 389.56 106.28
Depreciation (110.70) (3.65) (47.50) (66.85)
491.44 (3.65) 342.06 145.73
TOTAL 6,091.32 2,031.65 2,356.57 5,766.40
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(1) Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 4,067.41 4,598.75
(Market Value -Rs.60,363.06 lakhs Previous year Rs.22,709.19 lakhs)
(2) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Equity Investments 1,345.42 841.34
(3) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Preference Investments 239.70 189.75
(4) Aggregate amount of immovable properties 212.58 602.14
5,865.11 6,231.98
Less: Aggregate depreciation on Immovable property (66.85) (110.7)
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments. (31.86) (29.96)
5766.40 6091.32

(*)  The right to transfer shares is restricted under Section 2 (68) (i) of the Companies Act 2013, being Private Limited Companies.

Face Value of Equity Shares is Rs. 10/- fully paid up unless otherwise stated.

(**) The Bonus shares as per Section 63 of the Companies Act 2013, hence no cost incurred for acquisition.
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NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Contd..)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units ~ Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.in lakhs  shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

Can Fin Homes Ltd 651 3.85 651 3.85
Canara Bank 706 1.52 706 1.52
Century Textiles Industries Ltd 173 1.48 173 1.48
Chemplast Sanimar Ltd 145 0.85 145 0.85
Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd 492 3.13 492 3.13
Cipla Ltd 164 1.50 164 1.50
Cms info Systems Ltd 1,192 2.88 1,192 2.88
Coforge Ltd 23 1.25 23 1.25
Coromandel International Ltd 438 3.38 438 3.38
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Ltd 971 4.02 971 4.02
Cyient Ltd 217 2.19 217 2.19
Dcb Bank Ltd 1,292 1.03 1,292 1.03
Dem Shriram Ltd 108 1.04 108 1.04
Dixon Technologies India Ltd 20 0.99 20 0.99
Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd 79 2.19 79 2.19
Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Ltd 1,125 1.16 1,125 1.16
Eicher Motors Ltd 19 0.48 19 0.48
Equitas Holdings Ltd 1,540 1.82 1,540 1.82
Fairchem Organics Ltd 83 1.53 83 1.53
FDC Lud 539 1.56 539 1.56
Federal Bank Ltd 4,040 3.65 4,040 3.65
FSN E-commerce Ventures Ltd 62 1.12 62 1.12
Galaxy Surfactants Ltd 41 1.21 41 1.21
Gati Corporation Ltd 224 0.42 224 0.42
GMM Pfaudler Ltd 40 1.78 40 1.78
Godrej Consumer Products Ltd 771 5.51 771 5.51
Greenpanel Industries Ltd 854 3.64 854 3.64
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NOTE : 9 (Contd..)

NOTES

FORMING PART

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

Grindwell Norton Ltd 54 0.99 54 0.99
HG Infra Engineering Ltd 398 2.35 398 2.35
HCL Technologies Ltd 183 2.10 183 2.10
HDFC Bank Ltd 308 4.56 308 4.56
HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd 111 0.70 111 0.70
HIL Ltd 72 2.80 72 2.80
Hindalco Industries Ltd 159 0.92 159 0.92
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 433 1.33 433 1.33
Hindustan Unilever Ltd 43 0.97 43 0.97
ICICI Bank Ltd 1,992 14.63 1,992 14.63
ICICI Lombard General linsurance Company Ltd 147 1.91 147 1.91
ICICI Securities Ltd 294 2.20 294 2.20
IDFC Ltd 4,634 2.52 4,634 2.52
IIFL Finance Ltd 1,009 3.00 1,009 3.00
ITFL Wealth Ltd Demerger 41 0.61 41 0.61
Iadigo Paints Ltd 83 1.62 83 1.62
Info Edge India Ltd 41 1.98 41 1.98
Infosys Ltd 291 5.18 291 5.18
Intellect Design Arena Ltd 62 0.44 62 0.44
lon Exchange 231 4.50 231 4.50
ITC Lud 736 1.68 736 1.68
Jubilant Ingrevia Ltd 328 1.61 328 1.61
KNR Constructions Ltd 98 0.29 98 0.29
Kolte Patil Developers Ltd 53 0.15 53 0.15
Kopran Ltd 1,076 2.91 1,076 2.91
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 25 0.46 25 0.46
Larsen Toubro Ltd 73 1.36 73 1.36
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NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

NOTES FORMING PART

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

LaT Technology Services Ltd 38 1.87 38 1.87
Maharashira Seamless Ltd 428 227 428 2.27
Mahindra Holiday & Resort India Ltd 110 0.23 110 0.23
Mangalore Ref Petrochemicals 926 0.41 926 0.41
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd 21 1.61 21 1.61
Mastek Ltd 126 3.46 126 3.46
Max Financial Services Ltd 546 4.85 546 4.85
Metropolis Healthcare Ltd 29 0.90 29 0.90
Motherson Sumi Wiring India Ltd 1,501 0.81 1,501 0.81
Motilal Oswal Financial Services 106 0.97 106 0.97
Mphasis Ltd 58 1.89 58 1.89
Multi Commodity Exchange Of India Ltd 51 0.80 51 0.80
Narayana Hrudayalaya Ltd 147 0.95 147 0.95
Natco Pharma Ltd 321 2.58 321 2.58
Navin Fluorine International Ltd 23 0.84 23 0.84
Nestle India Ltd 19 3.60 19 3.60
NIIT Led 223 0.96 223 0.96
Nocil Ltd 150 0.35 150 0.35
NTPC Ltd 1,105 1.51 1,105 1.51
Oil And Natural Gas Corp Ltd 836 1.36 836 1.36
Oracle Financial Services Software Ltd 63 2.43 63 2.43
Page Industries Ltd 4 1.67 4 1.67
Persistent Systems Ltd 79 3.39 79 3.39
Phoenix Mills Ltd 46 0.46 46 0.46
Polycab India Ltd 109 2.60 109 2.60
Quess Corp Ltd ¥y 2.24 n 224
Radico Khaitan Ltd 283 2.97 283 2.97
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NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)
CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
Relaxo Footwears Ltd 102 1.18 102 1.18
Rupa & Company Ltd 865 3.68 865 3.68
Sarda Energy And Minerals Ltd 231 1.93 231 1.93
Siyaram Silk Mills Ltd 664 2.96 664 2.96
SKF India Ltd 35 1.32 35 1.32
Somany Ceramics Ltd 187 1.54 187 1.54
Sonata Software Ltd 349 2.73 349 2.73
State Bank Of India 1,309 6.38 1,309 6.38
Sun Pharmaceutical Industried 399 3.32 399 3.32
Suprajit Engineering Ltd 440 1.41 440 1.41
Surya Roshni Ltd 231 1.44 231 1.44
Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd 114 0.59 114 0.59
Symphony Ltd 94 0.94 94 0.94
Tata Communications Ltd 141 1.80 141 1.80
Tata Motors Ltd 244 1.17 244 1.17
Tata Steel Ltd 43 0.55 43 0.55
TCI Express Ltd 17 0.30 17 0.30
The Anup Engineering Ltd 137 1.44 137 1.44
Titan Company Ltd 100 2.44 100 2.44
Transpek Industry Ltd 65 1.35 65 1.35
Tube Investments Of India 111 1.73 111 1.73
Ultra Tech Cement Ltd 21 1.54 21 1.54
United Spirits Ltd 534 4.76 534 4.76
UPL Led 482 3.52 482 3.52
Varun Beverages Ltd 363 3.34 363 3.34
Vedant Fashions Led 63 0.58 63 0.58
V-Mart Retail Ltd 30 1.17 30 1.17
Wipro Ltd 688 4.23 688 4.23
156.49 313.27 116.42 353.34
Diminution in Value - (10.01)

156.49 313.27 116.42 343.33




NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)
CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units ~ Rs in lakhs

In Structured Debt Products:

Mahindra &Mahindra Financial Services Ltd 50.00 592.00 50.00 592.00

In Mutual Funds- Equity:

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Regular Plan-Growth  1,62,385.99 623.19 4,494.01 17.08 1,57,891.98 606.11
Aditya Birla SL Equity Direct - D 15,256.25 18.80 15,256.25 18.80

Aditya Birla SL Equity - D 6,439.24 6.27 6,439.24 6.27

HDFC Small Cap Direct -D 62,909.09 18.80 62,909.09 18.80

HDFC Small Cap Reg-D 24,618.77 6.27 24,618.77 6.27

Kotak Standard-Multicap Direct-D 75,238.64 18.80 75,238.64 18.80

Kotak Standard-Multicap Reg-D 26,962.14 6.27 26,962.14 6.27

Mirae Asset Large Cap Direct -Div 52,903.14 18.80 52,903.15 18.80

Mirae Asset Large Cap Reg -Div 35,049.76 6.27 35,049.76 6.27 - -
Aditya Birla SL Flexi Cap Direct - Growth 2,264.51 28.18 2,264.51 28.18
Aditya Birla SL Flexi Cap - Growth 768.24 8.70 768.24 8.70
HDEC small cap Direct - Growth 35,142.89 27.46 35,142.89 27.46
HDFC Small Cap Reg-Growth 11,777.74 8.18 11,777.74 8.18
Kotak Flexicap Fund Direct Growth 45,024.34 25.99 45,024.34 25.99
Kotak Flexicap Fund Reg. Growth 16,280.15 8.46 16,280.15 8.46
Mirae Asset Large Cap Direct Growth 32,054.51 27.33 32,054.51 27.33

Mirae Asset Large Cap Reg - Growth 10,579.66 8.19 10,579.66 8.19
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NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

NOTES

FORMING PART

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
In Mutual Funds- Debt:
IDFC Low Duration Reg- Growth 6,24,445.25 133.12 6,24,445.25 133.12
Aditiya Birla Sun Life Savings- Growth- Regular Fund 2,749.45 8.24 2,749.45 8.24
IDFC Banking & PSU Debt - Reg- Growth 4,25,465.58 56.40 4,25,465.58 56.40
HDFC Liquid - Growth 1,38,935.15 5,391.89 5,785.13 224,51 1,33,150.02 5,167.38
ICICI Pru Liquid - Growth 1,31,321.69 382.16 1,06,553.55 314.16 24,768.14 68.00
ICICI Pru Money Market - Growth 2,86,942.39 832.67  7,16,694.58 2,125.14  9,81,385.52 2,890.83 22,251.45 66.98
HDFC Overnight fund - Growth Option- Direct Plant 25,037.05 ~ 80.00 25,037.05 ~ 80.00
7,527.93 2,347.63 3,546.86 6,328.72
Diminution in Value (0.95) o - _(0.86)
7,526.98 12,347.63 3,546.86 6,327.86
(ii) UNQUOTED :
In Bonds and Other Funds:
Liquid Gold PTC Series I Oct 20 50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
8,775.47 2,660.90 4,255.28 7,171.19
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(1) Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 6,682.06 8,276.42
(Market Value - Rs. 75,71.91 lakhs Previous year Rs. 86,88.80 Lakhs)
(2)  Aggregate amount of Unquoted Equity Investments 500.00 500.00
7,182.06 8,776.42
Less : Dimunition in Investment (10.87) (0.95)
7,171.19 8,775.47



NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 10
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Deposits 21.09 21.09
21.09 21.09
NOTE : 11
INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stores and Spares 154.71 120.06
Estate Nurseries 0.63 2.11
Finished Goods 275.70 358.27
431.04 480.44
NOTE : 12
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Considered good - Unsecured:
(a) Trade receivable outstanding for more than six months from
the date they become due for payment Nil Nil
(b) Other receivable 100.98 310.94
100.98 310.94
*Debts due by private limited companies in which directors are interested 29.10 -

The trade receivables ageing schedule is as follows :

Ourstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2022

R oo | Conhs | 12yeas | 23ycars | Moredhan | o
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 100.98 Nil Nil Nil Nil 100.98
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubdful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered doubrtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Ourstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2021

R o | o | 12years | 23yeas | Morehan [ ol
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 310.94 Nil Nil Nil Nil 316.94
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and stamps on hand 0.47 1.26
Bank balances With Scheduled Banks
In Current Account 1,127.79 16.36
1,128.26 17.62
With Scheduled Banks - Earmarked balances with bank
In Dividend Account 213.93 240.79
In Margin money deposit account 34.62 54.12
Others held by solicitor 2,160.11 -
2,408.66 294.91
3,536.92 312.53
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity Nil Nil
NOTE : 14
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
- Debts due by Officers of the Compay Nil Nil
- Others 158.27 262.62
Deposits:
(a) With NABARD under Tea Development Scheme 30.51 30.51
(b) With NABARD under Rubber Development Scheme 239.81 239.81
Other Loans and Advances :
Tax payments pending adjustment 247.12 181.41
675.71 714.35
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT

of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products
Tea & Tea Waste 3,648.10 4,513.11
Rubber 411.38 426.51
Cardamom 899.08 1,172.61
Other Produce 88.30 117.69
Other operating Income :
Tea Subsidy 8.88 17.40
5,055.74 6,247.32
NOTE : 16
OTHER INCOME
Income from Investments :
() LongTerm 614.00 595.77
(i) Current 0.92 6.02
Profit on Sale of Investments :
() LongTerm B} )
(i) Current 448.96 68.35
Profit on Sale of Assets 27.48 6.04
Interest Income on :
(i) Bankdeposits 1.74 1.89
(i) Others 40.45 14.03
Rent Received 0.42 0.26
Insurance Claim Received 16.40 24.15
Sale of Scrap 6.79 1.02
Dimunition of Investments - No longer required 0.95 30.79
1,158.11 748.32
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT
of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 17
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Refer Note.24)
Consumption of Raw material - Bought Leaf 988.00 1,197.76
-Tea - 1.42
988.00 1,199.18
NOTE : 18 -
PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Tea 0.77 0.98
NOTE : 19
INCREASE / DECREASE IN INVENTORY
Inventory at the beginning of the year : _
Tea 212.66 135.73
Rubber 62.04 102.24
Cardamom 83.57 75.34
Coffee - 10.51
358.27 323.82
Inventory at the end of the year :
Tea 119.78 212.66
Rubber 66.58 62.04
Cardamom 89.34 83.57
Coffee - -
275.70 358.27
(+) 8257 () _ 34.45
NOTE : 20
OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spares (Refer Note.24) 359.82 338.43
Power and Fuel 497.15 509.68
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant and Machinery 63.60 94.76
920.57 942.87
NOTE : 21 - -
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries Wages and Bonus 2,281.78 2,350.80
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 161.88 152.00
Provision for Gratuity (Note No 33) 10.97 129.55
Provision for Leave Encashment (Note No. 33) (6.62) 3.97
Welfare Expenses 52.52 43.71
2,500.53 2,680.03
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT
of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd...)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 22
FINANCE COST
Interest 0.79 0.77
Other Borrowing Cost 0.58 -
137 077
NOTE : 23
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent and Amenities 32.56 -
Repairs and Maintenance
Roads and Buildings 82.25 100.70
Vehicles 89.51 52.44
Others 4.61 10.11
Insurance 15.57 18.98
Rates and Taxes 20.71 24.13
Payment to Auditors’
For Audit 9.00 9.00
For Certification / Tax Audit 3.08 2.55
For Tax Representation 2.40 2.60
For Travelling and other Expenses 1.65 1.65
For Other Services 1.77 1.07
Travelling Expenses 36.54 22.46
Brokerage and Commission 13.87 21.78
Transport and warehousing 51.60 60.50
Legal and professional Expenses 22.80 11.60
Postage and Telephones 6.24 5.39
Printing and Stationery 5.97 5.17
Bank charges 1.91 1.51
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 2.84 1.95
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 1.03 0.69
Directors’ Sitting fees 1.60 1.10
Dimunition of Investments 12.77 0.95
Donations - 100.00
CSR expenditure (Note No. 40) 7.64 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 35.59 32.07
Net loss on foreign curency transaction and translation 7.94 -
471.45 488.40
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 315t March 2022 (contd.)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 24
PARTICULARS OF CONSUMPTION
Value in Rs. in lakhs %  Value in Rs. in lakhs %
(a) Rawmaterials - Indigenous
Bought Leaf 988.00 100 1,197.76 100
Bought Tea - 100 1.42 100
988.00 100 1,199.18 100
(b) Stores and Spares
Indigenous 359.82 100 338.43 100
Imported Nil Nil
359.82 100 338.43 100
NOTE : 25
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
a) Expenditure
Advance for purchase of Property 2,160.11 Nil
Professional Fee 2.20 Nil
Travel 2.20 Nil
Rent 32.56 Nil
NOTE : 26
TOTAL OUTSTANDING TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES (SMEs)
The information regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as
required under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED)
Act, 2006 as on 31st March 2022 is furnished below :
(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
(i)  Principal 7.80 11.86
(i)  Interest Nil Nil
(b) The amount of Interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of payments made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year Nil Nil
(c) The amount of Interest, due and payable for the period (where the
principle has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 has
not been paid) Nil Nil
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ar the end of
of the accounting year. Nil Nil
(¢) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductable
expenditure under section 23. Nil Nil

!



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 27
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit / (Loss) after tax 1,319.57 1,323.28
Number of Equity Shares in calculating EPS 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
Basic EPS 339.13 340.10
Diluted EPS 339.13 340.10
NOTE : 28
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
a)  Sales Tax demands disputed in appeals, against which Rs. 33.49 lakhs paid
and included under Loans and Advances 46.18 34.06
b) The future cash outflows on the above items are determinable only on
receipt of the decision/judgment that is pending at various forums/
authorities. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on this financial results. Nil Nil
c)  Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 15.80 13.50
d) The retrospective effect from 01.04.2014 of the operations and
implementation of the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 has
been stayed by Hon. High Court of Kerala. Considering the same, the
company has not provided for the additional liability. Nil Nil

NOTE : 29
LAND

The Company’s title to 432 acres of lease-hold right in Perinaad for
ninety-nine years from 08.03.1906, acquired by the Company by document
dated 23.01.1945, is disputed by certain persons, alleged to be on behalf
of the erstwhile lessors. Out of 432 acres, the Company has sold 110 acres
during 1970s leaving an extent of 322 acres in actual possession, being absolute
owners of the property by virtue of fixity of tenure under the provisions of the
Kerala Land Reforms Act. The matter was pending before the Sub-Court,
Pathanamthitta pending finalisation of the issue “fixity of tenure”under the
Kerala Land Reforms Act by the Land Tribunal ,Pathanamthitta. The Land
Tribunal vide order No. RC-3/07 dated 27-Oct-2012 held thar since the
company is cultivating rubber uninterruptedly is entitled to fixity of tenure and
the tribunal has forwarded its findings to the Sub Court. The Sub-Court,
Pathanamthitta has dismissed the claim of the petitioner and upheld the
contentions of the Company. Against the order of the Sub-Court, the petitioner
has filed a regular first appeal before the Hon. High Court of Kerala and the case
is yet to be heard.
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 30
SEGMENT REPORTING
The operations of the Company relate to Plantation Crops, which is the
significant business segment and therefore no separate reporting is made.
NOTE : 31
DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Tax impact of difference between carrying amount of Fixed Assets in the
Financial Statements and the Income Tax returns 45.99 50.60
Tax impact of expenses charged in the financial statements but allowable as
deduction in future years under Income Tax 23.11 30.07
Less: Deferred tax liability - Diminution in Value of the Investment 0.69 0.26
Net Deferred Tax Asset 68.41 80.41

NOTE : 32
IMPACT OF COVID 19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from
COVID-19 in the preparation of these Standalone financial statements including
the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. The
Company has considered possible future uncertainties in the global economy
because of this pandemic and as on the date of approval of these financial
statements expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Standalone financial
statements.
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Jfor the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

9

i) Defined Benefit Plans

a) Description of the Company’s defined benefit plan :
) Gratuity Scheme
This is a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees
for which, the Company makes contribution to the Gratuity Fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The scheme
provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

ii) Leave Encashment:
The company also operates a non funded leave encashment scheme for
its employees.

b) Reconciliation of changes in the Present Value of Obligation :

As on 31.03.2022

As on 31.03.2021

Gratuity Leave
Encashment
(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

Gratuity Leave
Encashment

(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

Present Value of the Obligation as on 1.04.2021 1,135.79 21.18 1,015.52 17.21
Current Service Cost 72.16 3.19 63.35 2.98
Interest Cost 67.58 1.34 66.94 1.04
Benefits Paid (132.93) - (62.32) (3.78)
Actuarial loss / (gain) (72.79) (11.15) 52.30 3.73
Present Value of the Obligation as on 31.03.2022 1,069.81 14.56 1,135.79 21.18
Reconciliation of changes in the fair

value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 1.04.2021 816.15 Nil 776.57 Nil
Expected return on plan assets 49.49 Nil 52.35 Nil
Contribution by the Company 66.87 Nil 48.85 Nil
Benefits Paid (132.93) Nil (62.32) Nil
Actuarial gain / (loss) 6.49 Nil 0.70 Nil
Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2022 806.07 Nil 815.15 Nil
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
Encashment Encashment

(Funded Plan)  (Non Funded Plan)  (Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

d) The total expense recognised in the Profit and
Loss Account is as follows

Current Service Cost 72.16 3.19 63.35 2.98
Interest Cost 67.58 1.34 66.94 1.04
Expected return on plan assets (49.49) NA (52.35) NA
Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (79.28) (11.15) 51.60 3.73

10.97 (6.62) 129.54 7.75

e)  Reconciliation of Net Liability recognised
in the Balance Sheet

Net Liability as at the beginning of the year 319.64 21.18 238.95 17.21
Add : Expense as (d) above 10.97 (6.62) 129.54 7.75
Less: Employers Contribution / Payment 66.87 - 48.85 3.78
Net Liability as at the end of the year 263.74 14.56 319.64 21.18

f)  Constitution of Plan Assets
Investments in LIC Group Gratuity Scheme 806.07 N.A. 816.15 N.A

g Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the
Balance Sheet Date

Discount Rate 7.10 % 7.10 % 6.32 % 6.32 %
Salary Escalation Rate 4.00 % 4.00 % 4.00 % 4.00 %
Attrition Rate 5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 %
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.10 % NA 6.32 % NA.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in acturial valuation, take
account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevent factors such as
demand and supply in the employment marker.
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

h) The amount pertaining to defined benefit plan are as follows:
31.03.2022  31.03.2021 31.03.2020  31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Gratuity funded plan

Defined Benefit Obligation 1,069.81 1,135.80 1,015.52 989.65 893.52
Plan Assets 806.07 816.15 776.57 805.99 793.13
Surplus/(Deficir) (263.74) (319.65) (238.95) (183.67) (100.39)
Experience adjustment - Plan Liability (72.79) 52.30 (33.01) 46.74 37.62
Experience adjustment - Plan Assets 6.49 0.70 (4.29) 0.39 (3.99)

The Company expects to fund Rs. 50 /- lakhs towards its Gratuity Plan during the year 2022-2023.
i)  Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund, family
pension fund, super annuation fund. Under the rules of these schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The
Company during the year recognised Rs. 172.85 lakhs as expense towards
contributions to these plans.
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for the year ended 315t March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 34
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Following associate companies are related to the Company

on account of common control through constitution of

Board / Shareholdings
- AVThomas & Co. Ltd.
- AV Thomas International Ltd.

- AV Thomas Investments Company Ltd.
- The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd.

- Neelamalai Agro Industries Ltd
- AV T Narural Products Ltd.

- AV T McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd.
- J.Thomas Educational 8 Benevolent Trust

- AVT Tea Services North America Inc
- AVT Natural SADECV
- Grover Zampa Vineyards Ltd

Key Managment Personnel :

Mr. Ajit Thomas, Chairman

AVT Holdings Private Ltd

AV Thomas Leather and Allied Products Pvt. Ltd.

AV Thomas Exports Lid.

Midland Latex Products Led.[Subsidiary]

Aspera Logistics Private Ltd.

Midland Corporate Advisory Services (P) Ltd
AVT Gavia Foods Private Ltd

Midland Charitable Trust
AVT Natural Europe Ltd

Provision Value Gard Private Ltd

Year ended 31.3.2022

Year ended 31.3.2021

Details of Transaction Associates Key Management Resociaies Key Management
Personnel Personnel
(including relatives) (including relatives)
INCOME
Sales 3,006.53 3,393.84
Dividend Received 614.00 595.77
EXPENDITURE
Purchase / Warehousing 3.84 6.70
Sitting Fees 0.70 0.60
Dividend paid 238.21 158.80
Donations paid 100.00
Salary 26.20 18.74
Professional Fee 6.00
OTHERS
BALANCE AS ON 31.3.2022
Debit Balances 31.98 323.89
Credit Balances 54.44 -
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
Jfor the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE: 35
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The investment property jointly held with M/s The Nelliampathy Tea and Produce Company Limited situated at Chennai was

sold during the Financial Year 2021-22 as per approval of the Board Resolution No. 003 dated 26th April 2021. The property
was sold on 28th April 2021 for a profit of Rs.5.66crores.

Sale Consideration 1,061.50
Book value and Expenditure in relation to sale (495.46)
Net profit on sale of investment property 566.04
NOTE: 36

DEPRECIATION

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Property, plant and equipment 219.41 148.90
Investment Property 3.65 17.53
223.06 166.43

NOTE-37

THE CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY, 2020

The Social Security Code relating to Employee Benefit during employment and post employment benefit received presidential
assent in September 2020.

The Code has been published in the Gazzette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified.

The Company will assess the impact of the code when it comes into effect.

NOTE-38
Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary

NOTE- 39

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in its meetingon 26.07.2022 have proposed a Final dividend of Rs. 75/- per Equity Share for financial
year ended March 31, 2022. The proposal is subject to the approval of Share holders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
15.09.2022 and if approved, would result in a cash Out flow of approximately Rs. 291.81Lacs.
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 315t March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 40

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.62 Nil
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset Nil Nil
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 7.64 Nil
Total Amount spent 764 NIl
Shortfall at the end of the year Nil Nil
Nature of CSR activities
Health Care 0.64 Nil
Measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward group 7.00 Nil

T764 TNl
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE 41
RATIO ANALYSIS
St. No. Ratio Numerator Denominator Kl | (Eievions % Rcas.on for
Year Year Variance variance
1 Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 9.67 8.08 19.75%
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt (including lease liability)] Total shareholder equity 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for debr service Debt Service = Interest 8 Lease
(in times) (Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash | Payments + Principal Repayments | 1,953.70 | 1,935.69 0.93%
operating expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations + Interest
+ other adjustments like loss on sale
of Fixed assets etc.)
B Return on Equity Ratio (in%) | Profitafter Tax Average Shareholders Equity 7 % 8% | -6.00%
5 Inventory Turn over Ratio (in times)| Cost of goods sold Average inventory 11.07 13.23 | -16.26 %
6 Trade Receivable Turn over Ratio (in times) | Net Credit Sales Average Accounts Receivable 24.50 26.19 | -6.43%
7 | Trade Payable Turn over Ratio (in times) | Net Credit Purchases Average Accounts Payable 3.83 3.63 | 5.68%
8 Net Capital Turn over Ratio (in times) Net Sales (Sales minus sales return) | Working Capital 0.47 0.67 | -29.6204 On account of
decrese in revenue
from operation .
9 Net Profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit (Net profit after tax) Net Sales (Sales minus sales return)| 26 % 21% | 23.10 %
10 | Returnon Capital Employed Ratio | EBIT Capital Employed 9 % 9% | -3.31%
(in %) (Tangible net worth+Total debt
+Deferred Tax Liability)
11 | Return on Investment (in %) Net return on investment Average investment 8 % 5 % 62.56 %| On account of
higher profits
from Investment.




NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE - 42:

The Company has elected to exercise the option of lower tax rate as per section 115BAA and has accordingly recognised Provision for Income

Tax for the year ended March 31, 2022 and remeasured Deferred Tax Assets at the lower tax rate prescribed in the said section.

NOTE : 43

OTHER NOTES
Additional Regulatory Information as required under Schedule III Division I of Companies Act,2013

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Company does not hold any Benami property and there are no Proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in any time during the year and
previous year.

The company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956.

All the charges/satisfaction are registered with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period as specified in the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) The Company confirms that no funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity(‘Intermediaries”),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”)or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management confirms that no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity(“Funding Parties”),with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether ,directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(vii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency anytime during the financial year.

(viii) During the year there are no loans or advances made to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and related parties.

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The same has been used for the specific purpose for
which it was taken.

The Quarterly returns / statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are agreement with books of accounts and
hence no separate disclosure is made for reason for discrepancies.

The Company has complied with Sec 2(87) of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the
investments made by the Company.

(xii) All title deeds of immovable properties are in the name of the company.

Vide our report of date attached

For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0042835
G. Rengarajan Ajit Thomas
Place : Chennai rener Chairman
Date : 26.07.2022 Membership No. 219922 DIN : 00018691
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the members of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company
Limited, Kochi (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
and associates (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31st
2022, the Consolidated statement of profit and loss,
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (herein referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements’ ).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read along with the Companies Rules, 2014 and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the
consolidated profit ,consolidated total comprehensive income
profitand its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Information Other than the consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the management report, its annexures, Board’s Report
including annexures, Director’s Responsibility Statements,
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but does not include the consolidated Financial Statements
and our Audit Report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, based on the work we have performed, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the marters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application ofappropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from marerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, The
Board of Directors of the company included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.



The respective Board of Directors of Companies included in
Group are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance butis nota
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obrain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company and its associate has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audir of the financial statements of such entities included
in the consolidated financial statements

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the auditand
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other marters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our



report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did nort audir the financial statements of two associates,
included in the consolidated financial statements of the
company whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.
92,503.65 lakhs as at 31st March 2022 and the total revenue
of Rs. 1,16,726.50 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements also include the group’s
share of Net profit of Rs. 2,991.52 Lakhs for the year ended
31-March-2022, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of the two associates, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the on the consolidated financial statements , in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these associates , and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so faras it
relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports
of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respecr of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors and the financial statements certified by
the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
consolidared financial statements have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

() On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Company as on
31*March 2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the company and its associate companies
incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its associate companies incorporated in
India none of the directors of the Group companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31* March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
our separate report in Annexure A; which is based
on the auditor’s reports of the Company and its
associate companies incorporated in India. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial control over financial reporting of those
companies, for reasons stated therein.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in dccordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as

amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
holding company has not made any payments
which are covered under section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements Rule 11 of the Companies (Auditand
Auditors) Rules in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i The company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position in its financial statements -Refer Note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidared
financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term
contracts including derivative contracts.



iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,

required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the holding
Company and its associate companies
incorporated in India.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the

Holding Company and its associates which
are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company or any of
such associates to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company or
any of such associates (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare
Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the
Holding Company and its associates which
are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company or any of such associates from
any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding  Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company or any of
such associates shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries
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(©) Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us on
the Holding Company and its associates
which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The final dividend proposed in the previous

year, declared and paid by the Holding
Company during the year and the interim
dividend declared and paid by the Holding
Company during the year and until the date of
this report are in compliance with Section 123
of the act.

Further, the Board of Directors of the holding
Company have proposed final dividend for the
year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is
in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi)
and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(the “Order”/ “CARQO”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to
be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based
on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company
and its associates included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

Chennai

26.07.2022

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.004283S

G. Rengarajan
Partner
Membership No. 219922

UDIN : 22219922ANRBIU1434



ANNEXURE A TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To the members of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

In conjuncrion with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the company as of and for the year ended
31-March-2022 we have audited the internal financial controls
over finacial reporting of The Midland Rubber & Produce
Company Limited (hereinafter refered to as “The Holding
Company)’ and it’s subsidiary and associate companies which are
incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the holding company and
it’s associates which are incorporared in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obrain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obraining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thar a marerial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obrtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thar,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and thar receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial starements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and it’s associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31-Mar-2022
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.004283S

G. Rengarajan
Parener
Membership No. 219922

UDIN : 22219922ANRBIU1434

Chennai
26.07.2022



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 st March 2022

Figures as at the Figures as at the
Particulars Notes end of 31.03.2022 end of 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 38.91 38.91
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 33,832.45 _30,408.55
33,871.36 30,447 .46
Minority Interest 0.01 0.14
(2) Non - Current Liabilities 4
(a) Long- term provisions 1175 7.02
11.75 7.02
(3) Current Liabilities 5
(a) Short Term Borrowings — —
(b) Trade Payables
- Toral outstanding dues of Micro
Enterprises and small enterprises an 7.80 11.86
- Toral outstanding dues of Creditors other
than Micro Enterprises and small enterprises 298.55 403.88
(¢) Other Current Liabilities 322.88 300.12
(d) Short-Term Provisions 602.51 596.05
1,231.74 1,311.91
TOTAL 35,114.86 31,766.53
II. ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,102.45 1,080.21
(ii) Capital Work in Progress
(a) Bearer Plants 7 166.87 184.45
(b) Others - 45.46
(iti) Goodwill on consolidation 0.96 0.96
1,270.28 1,311.08
(b) Non - current Investments 8 21,839.12 19,758.28
() Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 31 68.41 80.41
(d) Other non - current assets 10 21.09 21.09
21,928.62 19,859.78
(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 9 7,171.19 8,775.47
(b) Inventories 11 431.04 480.44
(c) Trade Receivables 12 100.98 310.94
(d) Cashand Cash equivalents 13 3,537.04 314.25
(e) Short - term Loans and advances 14 675.71 714.35
()  Other current assets - Accrued Income - 0.23
11,915.96 10,595.68
Significant Accounting Policies 1
TOTAL 35,114.86 31,766.54

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Vide our report of date attached

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0042838

G. Rengarajan
Place : Chennai Partner
Date : 26.07.2022 Membership No. 219922

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Ganesan

Director

DIN : 08588380

Ajit Thomas
Chairman
DIN : 00018691
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
For the Year Ended 31st March 2022

Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars Notes year ended 31.03.2022 year ended 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

I Revenue from operations 15 5,055.74 6,247.32
I Otherincome 16 560.49 160.42
Il Total Revenue (I+I1) 5,616.23 6,407.74
IV Expenses:

Cost of material consumed 17 988.00 1,199.18

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 18 0.77 0.98

Changes in Inventory of Finished goods,

work in progress and stock-in-trade 19 (+) 82.57 ) 34.45

Other Manufacturing Expenses 20 920.57 942.87

Employee benefits expenses 21 2,501.24 2,680.74

Finance cost 22 1.37 0.77

Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 223.06 166.43

Other Expenses 23 469.91 489.05

Toral expenses 5,187.49 5,445.57
V' Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (ITI-IV) 428.74 962.17
VI Exceptional items 35 566.04 -
VII Extraordinary items 5 -
VIII Profit Before Tax (V-VI-VII) 994.78 962.17
IX Tax Expense

Current tax 260.00 244.00

Deferred tax 12.00 (15.85)

Share of profit / (loss) of Associate companies. 3,001.48 2,133.04

Minority Interest 0.13 0.16
X Profit After Tax (VII-IX) 3,724.39 2,867.22
Xl Earnings per Share (in Rs.) 27

(1) Basic 957.18 736.89

(2) Diluted 957.18 736.89

Face value per ordinary share - Rs. 10

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Vide our report of date artached

For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0042835
G. Rengarajan S. Ganesan Ajit Thomas
Place : Chennai Partner Director Chairman

Date : 26.07.2022

Membership No. 219922

DIN : 08588380

DIN : 00018691
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st March 2022

90

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 3,430.34 3.095.37
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 223.06 166.42
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 2.84 1.95
Profit/ (Loss) on sale of Assets (603.52) (6.04)
Profit on sale of Investments (448.96) (68.35)
Provision for Gratuity (55.91) 80.70
Provision for Leave Encashment (6.62) 3.97
Interest Received (42.18) (3.37)
Dividend / Investment income Received (17.30) (26.43)
Interest Paid 0.79 0.77
Dimunition in value of Investments 10.87 (29.83)
Capitalisation of Bearer Plants 12.07
Operating Profit before working capital changes: 2,505.48 3,215.16
Adjustments for:
Trade and other Receivables 209.96 (146.08)
Inventories 49.40 (18.75)
Trade Payables (86.76) (156.68)
Other Current Assets (2,009.17) (32.01)
(1,836.57)
Cash generated from operations 668.92 2,861.64
Direct Taxes Paid (251.99) (231.83)
Cash flow before extraordinary items 416.93 2,629.81
Extraordinary Items Nil Nil
Net cash from operating activities 416.93. 2,629.81
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (434.74) (388.35)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 276.73 47.72
Purchase of Investments (7,700.57) (7,870.70)
Capital advance for Purchase of Property - -
Sale of Investments ( Net Of Taxes) 8,346.37 5,094.34
Sale of Rubber Trees (Net of Replanting Expenditure) (11.52) (19.62)
Interest Received 42.18 3.37
Dividend / Investment income Received 466.26 94.78
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities 984.71 (3,038.406)



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st

March 2022 - Contd.

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid (0.79) (0.77)
Dividend Paid (291.81) (194.54)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (292.60) (195.31)
1,109.04 (603.96)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the year 19.34 623.30
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year 1,128.38 19.34
1,109.04 (603.96)

Vide our report of date attached

For SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0042835

G. Rengarajan
Partner
Membership No. 219922

Place : Chennai
Date : 26.07.2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Ganesan
Director
DIN : 08588380

Ajit Thomas
Chairman
DIN : 00018691
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 315t March, 2022

NOTE : 1

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background: The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India during the year 1937 and has its
registered office at Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Kerala, India. The Company is engaged in Plantation activity and the crop dealt with
by the company is Tea, Rubber and Cardamom. The main business being Cultivation, Manufacruring and sales of Tea, Rubber and
Cardamom.

L.

IL.

I11.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandarory accounting standards
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

All assets and liabilities has been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle (12 months)
and other criteria set out in Schedule I11 to the Act.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The financial statements of The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited is consolidated with its subsidiary Midland
Latex Products Limited (88.05% shareholding) and Associates a) AVT Natural Products Limited (29.85% shareholding), b)
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Limited (27.08% shareholding) and c) Midland Corporate Advisory Services Private
Limited (32.89% shareholding).

This is the fourth year of subsidiary consolidation using line by line consolidation as per Accounting Standard (AS) 21.
Associates are entities over which the group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting as laid under Accounting Standard (AS) 23, “Accounting for Investment is Associate in
Consolidated Financial Statements”. The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date. The group’s investment in
Associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a)  Property, Plantand equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss based on
cost model.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
i.  itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise; and
ii. the cost of the item can be measured reliably

Cost includes tax (but does not include GST credit is available), freight and other direct or allocated expenses during
construction period, net of any income earned. Assets acquired on Hire Purchase are capitalized at principal value.

b)  Direct Expenditure on replanting of Tea/Rubber/Cardamom attributable to bringing the bearer plant to the condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management less Subsidy on replanting of Tea/
Rubber/Cardamom are capiralised as Bearer Plants.

) Depreciation on property plant and equipment [other than bearer plants (rubber trees, tea bushes and cardamom plants)
which are depreciated using straight line method] has been charged as per the useful life specified in Schedule I of
Companies Act 2013, except Assets costing individually less than Rs.5,000/- which are depreciated at 100 %. The
residual value is considered at 5 % of the original cost of Plant, property and equipment. Depreciation for assets purchased/
sold during the period is proportionately charged.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated under the written down value method [other than bearer plants (rubber
trees, tea bushes and cardamom plants) which are depreciated using straight line method] over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which are different from the lives prescribed under Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013

Useful life adopted by the Company for bearer plants is as follows:
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd.)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

VII.

VIIL

Useful life adopted by the Company for bearer plants is as follows:

Asset category Useful lives (in years)
Bearer plants — Cardamom Plants 12
Bearer plants - Rubber trees 30
Bearer plants - Tea bushes 50

d)  Intangible assets amortized over their respective individual useful lives on straight line basis, commencing from the
date the asset is available to the company for its use. Depreciation and Amortization methods, useful lives and residual
value are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets for any possible impairment at each balance sheet date. An impairment
loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, if any, is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset, upto the date of acquisition/completion of construction. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expense as and when incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use of sale.

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Decline in value of long term investments, other than temporary, is provided for.
Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Investment in immovable properties is stated at cost less
depreciation.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lower of cost on weighted average and net realisable value, after providing for obsolescence wherever
considered necessary. Cost includes tax (other than GST credit is available), freight and other direct expenses.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized on accrual and when no significant uncertainty on measurability or collectability exists. Expenditure
is accounted for on their accrual.

SALE OF GOODS

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore,
these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

INTEREST

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

DIVIDENDS

_ Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd.)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

X

XIIL

XIII.

XIIV.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Gratuity Liability which is a defined benefit scheme and provision for Leave Encashment is accrued and provided for on the
basis of independent actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and Super annuation Schemes, which are defined
contribution schemes are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective fund
accrues.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign Currency Transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange in force at the time transactions are effected. In the case
of forward contracts, the difference between forward rate and exchange rate on the date of transaction is dealt with in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on the Completion of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and
outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are converted at the year end exchange rate and the resultant loss or gain is dealt with
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Subsidies from Government in respect of fixed assets are deducted from the cost of respective assets as and when they accrue.

Subsidies related to revenue are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to match them with the related costs which
they are intended to compensate.

TAXES ON INCOME

Provision for Income-Tax is made for both current and deferred tax. Provision for current income tax is made on the
assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. Deferred tax is accounted for by computing the
tax effect of the timing difference which arise during the year and reverse out in the subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
calculated at the rax rates substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is
a virtual certainty that they will be realized.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

PROVISIONS

A Provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimate are reviews at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimares.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March, 2022

NOTE : 1 (contd)
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

XVL

XVIL

XVIIL

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed

EXPENDITURE ON NEW PLANTING

Direct Expenditure on new planting of different crops (other than Minor Produce) including upkeep and maintenance
expenditure on immature plants are capitalised under “Development”.

EXPENDITURE ON REPLANTING
The upkeep and maintenance expenditure on immature plants is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

DIVIDEND

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Flow Statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow
from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit is adjusted for the
effects of

(i) Transactions of a non-cash nature.
(i) Any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
(iii) Itrems of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in Cash Flow Statement.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 2
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorised
6,25,000- Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 62.50 62.50
3,75,000- 6 % Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 37.50 37.50
100.00 100.00
b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up
3,89,083.50 - Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. 38.91 38.91
¢. Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginnig
and at the end of the reporting year
Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
Add / Less : Shares Issued / buyback etc Nil Nil
Number of shares at the end of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of
equity shares
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Mr. Ajit Thomas 3,17,646 81.64 3,17,596 81.63

e. No bonus shares | Buy back of shares in last 5 years

£ The company has issued only one class of shares which is equity shares. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled for

one vote in proportion to the number of shares held

g Shares reserved under option and contract | commitments for sale of shares / disinvestments - Nil (Nil)
h  The aggregate value of calls unpaid (including Directors and Officers of the Company) - Nil (Nil)

i. Disclosure of Promoters Shareholding Pattern

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 % of
Promoter Name No.of |, No.of |, change during
shares held % of total shares e Bkl % of total shares the year
Mr. AjitThomas 3,17,646 81.64 3,17,596 81.63 0.01
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 3
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Share Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet 27.20 27.20
Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 26.85 26.85
Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 65.12 65.12
Rubber Replanting Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 9.68
Add : Sale Proceeds of Rubber Trees 14.08
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance Provided 2.84
26.60
Less : Expenditure of Replanting 25.60 1.00 9.68
General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 16,901.70
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 1,000.00
17,901.70 16,901.70
Surplus
Profit for the period 3,724.39 2,867.22
Add: Surplus brought forward from previous year 13,378.00 11,705.32
17,102.39 14,572.54
Appropriations
Transfer to General Reserve 1,000.00 1,000.00
Final dividend for 2020-21- Paid on Equity shares Rs. 50/- per share
(Previous year - Nil per Share) 194.54
Interim dividend for 2021-22- Paid on Equity shares Rs. 25/- per share
(Previous year - Rs. 50/- per Share ) 97.27 194.54
Surplus carried forward 15,810.58 13,378.00
33,832.45 30,408.55
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 4
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Long - Term Provisions (Note 33)
Provision for Employee benefits
For Gratuity - -
For Leave Encashment 11.75 7.02
11.75 7.02
NOTE : 5

CURRENT LIABILITIES

a Short - Term borrowings - From Bank - Secured

The Company’s borrowing facilities comprising cash credit facility

of Rs. 1,50,00,000 secured by hypothecation of stock-in-Trade,

Standing Crops and Machinery in Tea and Rubber Factories, Vehicles

and also equitable mortgage of the Estates Land together with

Buildings thereon. Nil Nil
The loans have not been guaranteed by Directors or others.

Period and amount of default as on 31st March 2022 NIL (PY. NIL)

b Trade Payable
(Refer Note No. 26 for details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises)
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises and 7.80 11.86

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006” has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied
upon by the auditors.

Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 298.55 403.88
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs

The trade payables ageing schedule is as follows :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars as on 31st March 2022 Tocal
Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years
(i) MSME 7.80 Nil Nil Nil 7.80
(i) Others 298.55 Nil Nil Nil 298.55
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars as on 31st March 2021 Total
Lessthan 1 year| 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 11.86 Nil Nil Nil 11.86
(ii) Others 403.88 Nil Nil Nil 403.88
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed dues - Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

¢. Other Current Liabilities

Unpaid dividends 213.93 240.79
Statutory dues 38.62 39.33
Security Deposit 20.00 20.00
Advance from Customer 50.33

322.88 300.12

d  Short - Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits : ( Note No. 33)

For Leave Encashment 2.81 14.16
For Gratuity 263.74 319.65
Other Provisions :
For Taxation 335.96 262.24
60251 596.05
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 6 of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Deductions As at Up to For Withdrawn Upto As at As at
Description 01.04.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 the year 31.3.2022 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Rs.inlakhs  Rs.inlakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs.inlakhs  Rs.in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Frechold Land (Notei) 173:51 143.39 30.12 30.12 173.51
17351 173.51 173.51 17351
Development 138.79 138.79 138.79 138.79
138.79 138.79 138.79 138.79
Buildings (Notei) 474.26 48.15 6.72 515.69 343.68 14.67 6.72 351.63 164.06 130.57
470.02 423 474.25 329.72 13.96 343.68 130.57 140.30
Machinery 1,527.57 137.08 1,664.65 1,148.09 88.92 1,237.01 427.64 379.48
1,459.33 97.61 29.37 1,527.57 1,096.73 79.60 2824 1,148.09 379.48 362.61
Furniture And Fittings 194.00 43.24 237.24 72.35 38.38 110.73 126.51 121.65
8223 111.77 194.00 65.63 672 72.35 121.65 16.61
Electrical Installations 113.16 113.16 83.09 7.50 90.59 22.57 30.08
95.27 17.89 113.16 78.52 4.56 83.08 30.08 16.74
Vehicles 284.54 199.71 110.91 373.34 178.41 65.11 55.70 187.82 185.52 106.13
277.74 6.80 284.54 13435 44.06 17841 106.13 143.39
Bearer Plants - Cardamom 12.07 12.07 4.83 4.83 7.24 -
Total 2,905.83 440.25 261.02 3,085.06 1,825.62 219.41 62.42 1,982.61 1,102.45 1,080.21
DPrevious Year 2,696.89 23830 2937 2,905.82 1,704.95 148.90 28.24 1,825.61 1,080.21 991.95

* Previous year's figures have been shown in Italics

Notes : (i) Includes Rs.1.38 and Rs.12.33 lakhs respectively representing Cost of Land and Buildings in joint ownership with other Companies, the book value of which
amounted to Rs.1.38 and Rs. 0.65 lakhs respectively.

(ii) The Company does not hold any lease hold properties

NOTE : 7
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Amount in CWIP for a period of 2021 - 2022
CWIP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 ycarsl Total*
Projects in progress 25.54 34.75 33.04 73.54 166.87
Projects temporarily suspended

*There are no capital-work-in-pro; whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
P g
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE: 8
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST
Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount

shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

I. INVESTMENTS IN NON CURRENT INSTRUMENTS :

(i) QUOTED :
AVT Natural Praduets Lid {Avsociate Company) (Rs. 1share) 4,54,52,175 10,120.88 4,54,52,175 11,159.08
Share of Profit for the year 1,333.64 2,148.31
Less Dividend Income (295.44) (363.62)
11,159.08 12,943.77
Neelamalai agro Industries Ltd 8,526 119.92 20,019 713.55 28,545 833.47
Infosys Ltd (Rs.5/share) 1,612 22.53 1,612 22.53
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd (Rs. 1/share) 628 20.02 628 20.02
National Stock Exchange 10,000 280.04 10,000 280.04
Bajaj Finance Ltd (Rs. 2/share) ¥ 2.45 3 2.45
Deepak Fertilisers & Petro Chemicals Corporation Ltd 455 2.50 455 2.50
Deepak Nitrite Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 131 249 131 2.49
ICICI Bank Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 369 249 369 249
Larsen & Toubro Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 149 2.49 149 249
Persistant Systems Ltd 61 2.46 61 2.46
Tata Chemicals Ltd 297 2.49 297 249
Tata Motors Ltd (Rs. 2/share) 619 2.50 619 2.50
Tata Power Company Ltd (Rs. 1/share) 1,132 2.50 1,132 2.50
11,279.00 1,058.51 14,122.20
In Structured Debt Products

Axis Finance Led 50 504.06 50.00 504.06

L & T Housing Finance Ltd 50 503.97 50.00 503.97

Tata Cleantech Capital Ltd 500 504.18 500.00 504.18
MindSpacr Business Perks REIT BR 50 502.30 50.00 502.30 - -
Bajaj Housing Finance Ltd 50 424.66 50 424.66

12,014.51 424.66 2,014.51 424.66
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 8 (Contd...)

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
(ii)UNQUOTED :
In Equity Instruments:
AV Thomas Investments Co Ltd 24,500 245 24,500 2.45
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd
(Associate Company) (*) 58,50,000 5,070.24 58,50,000 5,576.37
Share of Profit for the year 798.63 843.21
Less Dividend Income (29250 ~ (234.00)
5,576.37 6,185.58
Midland Corporate Advisory Services Pv Ltd
(Associate Company) (*) 2,50,000 6.95 2,50,000 T
Share of Profit for the year 078 9.96
173 17.69
L.]. International Ltd (**) 428 - 428 -
The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co Ltd 46,498 197.03 46,498 197.03
In Structured Debt Products (Unquoted):
HDB Financial Services Ltd 50 504.08 50 504.08
5,783.58 504.08 6,906.83
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 8 (Contd...)
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM)- VALUED AT COST

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
2. PREFERENCE SHARES (FULLY PAID)
Beer Works Restaurants and Microbrewery Pvt Ld
(Rs. 100/Share) 300 189.75 300 189.75
Virohan Pvt Ltd 134 4995 134 49.95
189.75 4995 239.70
3. IN IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES
Value of Land 106.30 106.30
Building (Including Fittings and Fixtures) 495.84 389.56 106.28
Depreciation (110.70) (3.65) (47.50) (66.85)
491.44 (3.65) 342.06 145.73
TOTAL 19,758.28 2,033.55 2,356.57 21,839.12
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(1) Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 14,546.86 13,293.51
(Market Value -Rs.60,363.06 lacs Previous year Rs.22,709.19 lacs)
(2) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Equity Investments 6,906.83 5,783.58
(3) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Preference Investments 239.70 189.75
(4) Aggregate amount of immovable properties 212.58 602.14
21,905.97 19,868.98
Less : Aggregate depreciation on Immovable property (66.85) (110.70)
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments. - -
21,839.12 19,758.28
0.00 0.00

(*)  The right to transfer shares is restricted under Section 2 (68) (i) of the Companies Act 2013, being Private Limited Companies.

Face Value of Equity Shares is Rs. 10/- fully paid up unless otherwise stated.
(**) Bonus shares as per Section 63 of the Companies Act 2013, hence no cost incurred for acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE: 9

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount

shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

1. INVESTMENTS IN CURRENT INSTRUMENTS :

(I) QUOTED:
In Equity Instruments:
Credit Access Grameen Ltd 2,850 20.03 3,358 20,02 6,208 40.05
Harrisons Malayalam Ltd 1,00,000 116.42 1,00,000 116.42 -
Linde India Ltd 1,219 20.04 1,220 30.77 2,439 50.81
3M India Ltd 3 0.71 3 0.71
Aavas Financiers Ltd 65 1.57 65 1.57
Abbott India Ltd 4 0.73 4 0.73
Aegis Logistics L 525 1.07 525 1.07
Ajanta Pharma Ltd 64 1.22 64 1.22
Alembic Pharmaceuticals Ltd 40 0.30 40 0.30
Alkyl Amines Chemicals Ltd 43 1.27 43 1.27
Allcargo Logistics Ltd 1,175 3.96 1,175 3.96
Arvind Fashions Ltd 288 0.83 288 0.83
Asian Paints Ltd 93 2.87 93 2.87
Astral Ltd 154 3.28 154 3.28
Atul Ltd 21 1.86 21 1.86
Axis Bank Ltd 1,356 9.71 1,356 9.71
Bajaj Finanace Ltd 18 1.27 18 1.27
Bajaj Finserv Ltd 9 1.49 9 1.49
Bank Of Baroda 500 0.51 500 0.51
Bharti Airtel Ltd 291 2.06 291 2.06
Blue Dart Express Ltd 23 1.50 23 1.50
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units ~ Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. inlakhs shares/units Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

Can Fin Homes Ltd 651 3.85 651 3.85
Canara Bank 706 1.52 706 1.52
Century Textiles Industries Ltd 173 1.48 173 1.48
Chemplast Sanimar Ltd 145 0.85 145 0.85
Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd 492 3.13 492 3.13
Cipla Led 164 1.50 164 1.50
Cms info Systems Ltd 1,192 2.88 1,192 2.88
Coforge Ltd 23 1.25 23 1.25
Coromandel International Ltd 438 3.38 438 3.38
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Ltd 971 4.02 971 4.02
Cyient Ltd 217 2.19 217 .19
Dcb Bank Led 1,292 1.03 1,292 1.03
Dem Shriram Ltd 108 1.04 108 1.04
Dixon Technologies India Ltd 20 0.99 20 0.99
Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd 79 2.19 79 2.19
Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Ltd 1,125 1.16 1,125 1.16
Eicher Motors Ltd 19 0.48 19 0.48
Equitas Holdings Ltd 1,540 1.82 1,540 1.82
Fairchem Organics Ltd 83 1.53 83 1.53
FDC Ld 539 1.56 539 1.56
Federal Bank Ltd 4,040 3.65 4,040 3.65
FSN E-commerce Ventures Ltd 62 1.12 62 1.12
Galaxy Surfactants Led 41 1.21 41 1.21
Gati Corporation Ltd 224 0.42 224 0.42
GMM Pfaudler Led 40 1.78 40 1.78
Godrej Consumer Products Ltd 771 5.51 771 5.51
Greenpanel Industries Ltd 854 3.64 854 3.64
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units Rs.in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

Grindwell Norton Ltd 54 0.99 54 0.99
HG Infra Engineering Ltd 398 2.35 398 235
HCL Technologies Ltd 183 210 183 2.10
HDFC Bank Ltd 308 4.56 308 4.56
HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd 111 0.70 111 0.70
HIL Ltd 72 2.80 72 2.80
Hindalco Industries Ltd 159 0.92 159 0.92
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 433 1.33 433 1.33
Hindustan Unilever Ltd 43 0.97 43 0.97
ICICI Bank Ltd 1,992 14.63 1,992 14.63
ICICI Lombard General linsurance Company Ltd 147 1.91 147 1.91
ICICI Securities Ltd 294 2.20 294 2.20
IDFC Ltd 4,634 2.52 4,634 2.52
IIFL Finance Ltd 1,009 3.00 1,009 3.00
IIFL Wealth Ltd Demerger 41 0.61 41 0.61
Indigo Paints Ltd 83 1.62 83 1.62
Info Edge India Ltd 41 1.98 41 1.98
Infosys Ltd 291 5.18 291 5.18
Intellect Design Arena Ltd 62 0.44 62 0.44
lon Exchange 231 4.50 231 4.50
ITCLud 736 1.68 736 1.68
Jubilant Ingrevia Ltd 328 1.61 328 1.61
KNR Constructions Ltd 98 0.29 98 0.29
Kolte Patil Developers Ltd 53 0.15 53 0.15
Kopran Ltd 1,076 291 1,076 2.91
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 25 0.46 25 0.46
Larsen Toubro Ltd 73 1.36 73 1.36
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Conzd...)

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)
CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

LaT Tecknology Services Ltd 38 1.87 38 1.87
Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 428 2.27 428 2.27
Mahindra Holiday & Resort India Ltd 110 0.23 110 0.23
Mangalore Ref Petrochemicals 926 0.41 926 0.41
Maruti Suzuki India Led 21 1.61 21 1.61
Mastek Ltd 126 3.46 126 3.46
Max Financial Services Ltd 546 4.85 546 4.85
Metropolis Healthcare Ltd 29 0.90 29 0.90
Motherson Sumi Wiring India Ltd 1,501 0.81 1,501 0.81
Motilal Oswal Financial Services 106 0.97 106 0.97
Mphasis Ltd 58 1.89 58 1.89
Multi Commodity Exchange Of India Led 51 0.80 51 0.80
Narayana Hrudayalaya Ltd 147 0.95 147 0.95
Natco Pharma Ltd 321 2.58 321 2.58
Navin Fluorine International Ltd 23 0.84 23 0.84
Nestle India Ltd 19 3.60 19 3.60
NIIT Ltd 223 0.96 223 0.96
Nocil Ltd 150 0.35 150 0.35
NTPC Ltd 1,105 1.51 1,105 1.51
Oil And Natural Gas Corp Ltd 836 1.36 836 1.36
Oracle Financial Services Software Ltd 63 2.43 63 2.43
Page Industries Led 4 1.67 4 1.67
Persistent Systems Ltd 79 3.39 79 3.39
Phoenix Mills Ltd 46 0.46 46 0.46
Polycab India Ltd 109 2.60 109 2.60
Quess Corp Ltd 322 2.24 322 2.24
Radico Khaitan Ltd 283 2.97 283 2.97
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs.inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs

CIF

Relaxo Footwears Ltd 102 1.18 102 1.18
Rupa & Company Ltd 865 3.68 865 3.68
Sarda Energy And Minerals Ltd 231 1.93 231 1.93
Siyaram Silk Mills Ltd 664 2.96 664 2.96
SKF India Ltd 35 1.32 35 1.32
Somany Ceramics Ltd 187 1.54 187 1.54
Sonata Software Ltd 349 2.73 349 2.73
State Bank Of India 1,309 6.38 1,309 6.38
Sun Pharmaceutical Industried 399 3.32 399 332
Suprajit Engineering Ltd 440 1.41 440 1.41
Surya Roshni Ltd 231 1.44 231 1.44
Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd 114 0.59 114 0.59
Symphony Ltd 94 0.94 94 0.94
Tata Communications Ltd 141 1.80 141 1.80
Tata Motors Ltd 244 1.17 244 1.17
Tata Steel Led 43 0.55 43 0.55
TCI Express Ltd 17 0.30 17 0.30
The Anup Engineering Ltd 137 1.44 137 1.44
Titan Company Ltd 100 2.44 100 2.44
Transpek Industry Ltd 65 1.35 65 1.35
Tube Investments Of India 111 1.73 111 1.73
Ultra Tech Cement Ltd 21 1.54 21 1.54
United Spirits Ltd 534 4.76 534 4.76
UPL Led 482 3.52 482 3.52
Varun Beverages Ltd 363 3.34 363 3.34
Vedant Fashions Ltd 63 0.58 63 0.58
V-Mart Retail Ltd 30 1.17 30 1.17
Wipro Lid 688 4.23 688 4.23
156.49 313.27 116.42 353.34
Dimination in Value (10.01)
_156.49 _313.27 _116.42 34333



601

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Drescription No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs  shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs

In Stractured Debt Products:
Mahindra &Mahindra Financial Services Ltd 50.00 592.00 50.00 592.00
In Mutual Funds- Equity:
ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Regular Plan-Growth  1,62,385.99 623.19 4,494.01 17.08  1,57,891.98 606.11
Aditya Birla SL Equity Direct - D 15,256.25 18.80 15,256.25 18.80
Aditya Birla SL Equity - D 6,439.24 6.27 6,439.24 6.27
HDFC Small Cap Direct -D 62,909.09 18.80 62,909.09 18.80
HDFC Small Cap Reg-D 24,618.77 6.27 24,618.77 6.27
Kotak Standard-Multicap Direct-D 75,238.64 18.80 75,238.64 18.80
Kotak Standard-Multicap Reg-D 26,962.14 6.27 26,962.14 6.27
Mirae Asset Large Cap Direct -Div 52,903.14 18.80 52,903.15 18.80
Mirae Asset Large Cap Reg -Div 35,049.76 6.27 35,049.76 6.27 a
Aditya Birla SL Flexi Cap Direct - Growth 2,264.51 28.18 2,264.51 28.18
Aditya Birla SL Flexi Cap - Growth 768.24 8.70 768.24 8.70
HDFC small cap Direct - Growth 35,142.89 27.46 35,142.89 27.46
HDFC Small Cap Reg-Growth 11,777.74 8.18 11,777.74 8.18
Kotak Flexicap Fund Direct Growth 45,024.34 25.99 45,024.34 25.99
Kotak Flexicap Fund Reg. Growth 16,280.15 8.46 16,280.15 8.46
Mirae Asset Large Cap Direct Growth 32,054.51 27.33 32,054.51 27.33
Mirae Asset Large Cap Reg - Growth 10,579.66 8.19 10,579.66 8.19
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

NOTE : 9 (Contd...)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS - AT LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Ason 01.04.2021 Additions Deductions Ason 31.03.2022
Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount
shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units  Rs. inlakhs  shares/units Rs.in lakhs  shares/units  Rs. in lakhs
In Mutual Funds- Debt:
IDFC Low Duration Reg- Growth 6,24,445.25 133.12 6,24,445.25 133.12
Aditiya Birla Sun Life Savings- Growth- Regular Fund 2,749.45 8.24 2,749.45 8.24
IDFC Banking & PSU Debt - Reg- Growth 4,25,465.58 56.40 4,25,465.58 56.40
HDEC Liquid-Growth 1,38,935.15 5,391.89 5,785.13 224,51 1,33,150.02 5,167.38
ICICI Pru Liquid - Growth 1,31,321.69 382.16 1,06,553.55 314.16 24,768.14 68.00
ICICI Pru Moneyerket-Growth 2,86,942.39 832.67 7,16,694.58 2,125.14  9,81,385.52 2,890.83 22,251.45 66.98
HDFC Overnight fund - Growth Option- Direct Plant i 25,037.05 80.00 25,037.05 80.00
7,527.93 2,347.63 3,546.86 6,328.72
Diminution in Value (0.95) o - (0.86)
7,526.98 2,347.63 3,546.86 6,327.86
(ii) UNQUOTED :
In Bonds and Other Funds:
Liquid Gold PTC Series I Oct 20 50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
8,775.47 2,660.90 4,255.28 7,171.19
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(1) Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 6,682.06 8,276.42
(Market Value - Rs. 75,71.91 lakhs Previous year Rs. 86,88.80 Lakhs)
(2) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Equity Investments 500.00 500.00
7,182.06 8,776.42
Less : Dimunition in Investment (10.87) (0.95)
7,171.19 8,775.47



CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 10
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Deposits 21.09 21.09
21.09 21.09
NOTE : 11
INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stores and Spares 154.71 120.06
Estate Nurseries 0.63 2.11
Finished Goods 275.70 358.27
431.04 480.44
NOTE : 12
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Considered good - Unsecured:
(a) Trade receivable outstanding for more than six months from
the date they become due for payment Nil Nil
(b) Other receivable 100.98 310.94
100.98 310.94
*Debts due by private limited companies in which directors are interested 29.10 -

The trade receivables ageing schedule is as follows :

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2022

Less than

6 months -

More than

6 months Tyt 1-2years | 2-3years Jyeas Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 100.98 Nil Nil Nil Nil 100.98
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Ourstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31st March 2021

Eictiouks é‘:;:?hns 6 T‘;r;lr“ “| 1-2years | 2-3years M; ;2'::“ Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 310.94 Nil Nil Nil Nil 310.94
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered doubtful Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and stamps on hand 0.47 1.26
Bank balances With Scheduled Banks
In Current Account 1,127.91 18.08
1,128.38 19.34
With Scheduled Banks - Earmarked balances with bank
In Dividend Account 213.93 240.79
In Margin money deposit account 34.62 54.12
Others held by Solicitor 2,160.11 -
2,408.66 29491
3,537.04 314.25
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity NIl Nil
NOTE : 14
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
- Debts due by Officers of the Compay Nil Nil
- Others 158.27 262.62
Deposits:
(a) With NABARD under Tea Development Scheme 30.51 30.51
(b) With NABARD under Rubber Development Scheme 239.81 239.81
Other Loans and Advances :
Tax payments pending adjustment 247.12 181.41
675.71 714.35

112



CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT

of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products
Tea & Tea Waste 3,648.10 4,513.11
Rubber 411.38 426.51
Cardamom 899.08 1,172.61
Other Produce 88.30 117.69
Other operating Income:
Tea Subsidy 8.88 17.40
5,055.74 6,247.32
NOTE : 16
OTHER INCOME
Income from Investments :
() LongTerm 16.38 7.83
(i) Current 0.92 6.02
Profit on Sale of Investments :
(i) LongTerm 2 .
(ii) Current 448.96 68.35
Profit on Sale of Assets 27.48 6.04
Interest Income on :
()  Bankdeposits 1.74 1.93
(i) Others 40.45 14.03
Rent Received 0.42 0.26
Insurance Claim Received 16.40 24.15
Sale of Scrap 6.79 1.02
Dimunition of Investments - No longer required 0.95 30.79
560.49 160.42
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT
of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 17
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Refer Note.24)
Consumption of Raw material - Bought Leaf 988.00 1,197.76
e - 1.42
988.00 1,199.18
NOTE : 18 S -
PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Tea 0.77 0.98
NOTE : 19
INCREASE / DECREASE IN INVENTORY
Inventory at the beginning of the year :
Tea 212.66 135.73
Rubber 62.04 102.24
Cardamom 83.57 75.34
Coffee - 10.51
358.27 323.82
Inventory at the end of the year :
Tea 119.78 212.66
Rubber 66.58 62.04
Cardamom 89.34 83.57
Coffee = z
275.70 358.27
+) 82.57 () 34.45
NOTE : 20
OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spares (Refer Note.24) 359.82 338.43
Power and Fuel 497.15 509.68
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant and Machinery 63.60 94.76
- = 920.57 942.87
NOTE : 21
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries Wages and Bonus 2,282.49 2,351.51
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 161.88 152.00
Provision for Gratuity (Note No33) 10.97 129.55
Provision for Leave Encashment (Note No. 33) (6.62) 3.97
Wielfare Expenses 52.52 43.71
2,501.24 2,680.74
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT

of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 22
FINANCE COST
Interest 0.79 0.77
Other Borrowing Cost 0.58 -
1.37 0.77
NOTE : 23
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent and Amenities 32.56 -
Repairs and Maintenance
Roads and Buildings 82.25 100.70
Vehicles 89.51 52.44
Others 4.61 10.11
Insurance 15.57 18.98
Rates and Taxes 20.73 24.15
Payment to Auditors’
For Audit 9.33 9.20
For Certification / Tax Audit 3.08 2.55
For Tax Representation 2.40 2.79
For Travelling and other Expenses 1.65 1.65
For Other Services 1.77 1.07
For Goods and Service Tax - 0.05
Travelling Expenses 36.54 22.46
Brokerage and Commission 13.87 21.78
Transport and warehousing 51.60 60.50
Legal and professional Expenses 22.80 11.67
Postage and Telephones 6.24 5.39
Printing and Stationery 5.97 5.17
Bank charges 1.92 1.63
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 2.84 1.95
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 1.03 0.69
Directors’ Sitting fees 1.60 1.10
Dimunition of Investments 10.87 0.95
Donations - 100.00
CSR expenditure (Note No. 40) 7.64 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 35.59 32.07
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 7.94 -
469.91 489.05
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

For year ended For year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 24
PARTICULARS OF CONSUMPTION
Value in Rs. in lakhs % Value in Rs. in lakhs %
(a) Rawmaterials - Indigenous
Bought Leaf 988.00 100 1,197.76 100
Bought Tea - 100 1.42 100
988.00 100 1,199.18 100
(b) Stores and Spares
Indigenous 359.82 100 338.43 100
Imported Nil Nil
359.82 100 338.43 100
NOTE : 25
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
a) Expenditure
Advance for purchase of Property 2,160.11 Nil
Professional Fee 2.20 Nil
Travel 2.20 Nil
Rent 32.56 Nil
NOTE : 26
TOTAL OUTSTANDING TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES (SMEs)
The information regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as
required under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED)
Act, 2006 as on 31st March 2022 is furnished below :
(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year
()  Principal 7.80 11.86
(i)  Interest Nil Nil
(b) The amount of Interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of payments made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year Nil Nil
(c) The amount of Interest, due and payable for the period (where the
principle has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 has
not been paid) Nil Nil
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
of the accounting year. Nil Nil
(¢) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductable
expenditure under section 23. Nil Nil
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 27
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,724.39 2,867.22
Number of Equity Shares in calculating EPS 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50
Basic EPS 957.18 736.89
Diluted EPS 957.18 736.89
NOTE : 28
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
a)  Sales Tax demands disputed in appeals, against which Rs. 33.49 lakhs paid
and included under Loans and Advances 46.18 34.06
b)  The future cash outflows on the above items are determinable only on
receipt of the decision/judgment that is pending at various forums/
authorities. The Company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on this financial results. Nil Nil
o  Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 15.80 13.50
d) The retrospective effect from 01.04.2014 of the operations and
implementation of the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 has
been stayed by Hon. High Court of Kerala. Considering the same, the
company has not provided for the additional liability. Nil Nil
NOTE : 29

LAND

The Company’s title to 432 acres of lease-hold right in Perinaad for
ninety-nine years from 08.03.1906, acquired by the Company by document
dated 23.01.1945, is disputed by certain persons, alleged to be on behalf
of the erstwhile lessors. Out of 432 acres, the Company has sold 110 acres
during 1970s leaving an extent of 322 acres in actual possession, being absolute
owners of the property by virtue of fixity of tenure under the provisions of the
Kerala Land Reforms Act. The matter was pending before the Sub-Court,
Pathanamthitta pending finalisation of the issue “fixity of tenure”under the
Kerala Land Reforms Act by the Land Tribunal ,Pathanamthitta. The Land
Tribunal vide order No. RC-3/07 dared 27-Oct-2012 held that since the
company is cultivating rubber uninterruptedly is entitled to fixity of tenure and
the tribunal has forwarded its findings to the Sub Court. The Sub-Courr,
Pathanamthitta has dismissed the claim of the petitioner and upheld the
contentions of the Company. Against the order of the Sub-Court, the petitioner
has filed a regular first appeai before the Hon. High Court of Kerala and the case
is yet to be heard.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 30
SEGMENT REPORTING
The operations of the Company relate to Plantation Crops, which is the
significant business segment and therefore no separate reporting is made.
NOTE : 31
DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Tax impact of difference between carrying amount of Fixed Assets in the
Financial Statements and the Income Tax returns 45.99 50.60
Tax impact of expenses charged in the financial statements but allowable as
deduction in future years under Income Tax 23.11 30.07
Less: Deferred tax liability - Diminution in Value of the Investment 0.69 0.26
Net Deferred Tax Asset 68.41 80.41

NOTE : 32
IMPACT OF COVID 19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from
COVID-19 in the preparation of these Standalone financial statements including
the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. The
Company has considered possible future uncertainties in the global economy
because of this pandemic and as on the date of approval of these financial
statements expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Standalone financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

0

i) Defined Benefit Plans

a) Description of the Company’s defined benefit plan :
1) Gratuity Scheme

This is a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees
for which, the Company makes contribution to the Gratuity Fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The scheme
provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

i) Leave Encashment:
The company also operates a non funded leave encashment scheme for
its employees.

b) Reconciliation of changes in the Present Value of Obligation :

As on 31.03.2022

As on 31.03.2021

Gratuity

Leave

Encashment

(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

Gratuity Leave
Encashment
(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

Present Value of the Obligation as on 1.04.2021 1,135.79 21.18 1,015.52 17.21
Current Service Cost 72.16 3.19 63.35 2.98
Interest Cost 67.58 1.34 66.94 1.04
Benefits Paid (132.93) - (62.32) (3.78)
Actuarial loss / (gain) (72.79) (11.15) 52.30 3.73
Present Value of the Obligation as on 31.03.2022 1,069.81 14.56 1,135.79 21.18
Reconciliation of changes in the fair

value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 1.04.2021 816.15 Nil 776.57 Nil
Expected return on plan assets 49.49 Nil 52.35 Nil
Contribution by the Company 66.87 Nil 48.85 Nil
Benefits Paid (132.93) Nil (62.32) Nil
Actuarial gain / (loss) 6.49 Nil 0.70 Nil
Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2022 806.07 Nil 816.15 Nil
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

d)

e

The total expense recognised in the Profit and
Loss Account is as follows

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

Expected return on plan assets
Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year

Reconciliation of Net Liability recognised

in the Balance Sheet

Net Liability as at the beginning of the year
Add: Expense as (d) above

Less: Employers Contribution / Payment

Net Liability as at the end of the year

Constitution of Plan Assets
Investments in LIC Group Gratuity Scheme

Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the
Balance Sheet Date

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Attrition Rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets

As on 31.03.2022

As on 31.03.2021

Leave

Encashment

(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan)

Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment
(Funded Plan)  (Non Funded Plan)
72.16 3.19 63.35
67.58 1.34 66.94
(49.49) NA (52.35)
(79.28) (11.15) 51.60
10.97 (6.62) 129.54
319.64 21.18 238.95
10.97 (6.62) 129.54
66.87 - 48.85
263.74 14.56 319.64
806.07 N.A. 816.15
7.10 % 7.10 % 6.32 %
4.00 % 4.00 % 4.00 %
5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 %
7.10 % NA 6.32 %

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in acturial valuation, take
account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevent factors such as
demand and supply in the employment market.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 33
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

h) The amount pertaining to defined benefit plan are as follows:
31.03.2022  31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Gratuity funded plan

Defined Benefit Obligation 1,069.81 1,135.80 1,015.52 989.65 893.52
Plan Assets 806.07 816.15 776.57 805.99 793.13
Surplus/(Deficit) (263.74) (319.65) (238.95) (183.67) (100.39)
Experience adjustment - Plan Liability (72.79) 52.30 (33.01) 46.74 37.62
Experience adjustment - Plan Assets 6.49 0.70 (4.29) 0.39 (3.99)

The Company expects to fund Rs. 50 /- lakhs towards its Gratuity Plan during the year 2022-2023.

ii) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund, family
pension fund, super annuation fund. Under the rules of these schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The
Company during the year recognised Rs. 172.85 lakhs as expense towards
contributions to these plans.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE : 34

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Following associate companies are related to the Company

on account of common control through constitution of

Board / Shareholdings
- AV Thomas & Co. Ltd.

- AV Thomas International Ltd.
- AV Thomas Investments Company Ltd.

- The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd.

- Neelamalai Agro Industries Ltd
- AV T Natural Products Ltd.

- AV T McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd.
- J.Thomas Educational & Benevolent Trust

- AVT Tea Services North America Inc

- AVT Natural SADEC.V

Key Managment Personnel :

Grover Zampa Vineyards Ltd

- AVT Holdings Private Lid

- AV Thomas Leather and Allied Products Pvt. Ltd.

- AVThomas Exports Ltd.

- Midland Latex Products Ltd. [Subsidiary]

- Aspera Logistics Private Ltd.

- Midland Corporate Advisory Services (P) Ltd
- AVT Gavia Foods Private Ltd

- Midland Charitable Trust
- AVT Natural Europe Ltd

- Provision Value Gard Private Ltd

Mr. Ajit Thomas, Chairman

Year ended 31.3.2022

Year ended 31.3.2021

Details of Transaction Associates Key Management Associates | N€Y Management
Personnel Personnel
(including relatives) (including relatives)
INCOME
Sales 3,006.53 3,393.84
Dividend Received 614.00 595.77
EXPENDITURE
Purchase / Warehousing 3.84 6.70
Sitting Fees 0.70 0.60
Dividend paid 238.21 158.80
Donations paid 100.00
Salary 26.20 18.74
Professional Fee 6.00
OTHERS
BALANCE AS ON 31.3.2022
Debit Balances 31.98 323.89
Credit Balances 54.44 -
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE: 35
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The investment property jointly held with M/s The Nelliampathy Tea and Produce Company Limited situated at Chennai was

sold during the Financial Year 2021-22 as per approval of the Board Resolution No. 003 dated 26th April 2021. The property
was sold on 28th April 2021 for a profit of Rs.5.66c¢rores.

Sale Consideration 1,061.50
Book value and Expenditure in relation to sale (495.46)
Net profit on sale of investment property 566.04
NOTE: 36

DEPRECIATION

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Property, plant and equipment 219.41 148.90
Investment Property 3.65 17.53
223.06 166.43

NOTE-37

THE CODE ON SOCIAL SECURITY, 2020

The Social Security Code relating to Employee Benefit during employment and post employment benefit received presidential
assent in September 2020.

The Code has been published in the Gazzette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified.

The Company will assess the impact of the code when it comes into effect.

NOTE- 38
Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary

NOTE - 39
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in its meeting on 26.07.2022 have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 75/- per Equity Share for financial
year ended March 31, 2022. The proposal is subject to the approval of Share holders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
15.09.2022 and if approved, would result in a cash Out flow of approximately Rs. 291.81 Lacs.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2022 (contd.)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
NOTE : 40
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 7.62 Nil
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset Nil Nil
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 7.64 Nil
Total Amount spent 7.64 Nil
Shortfall at the end of the year Nil Nil
Nature of CSR activities
Health Care 0.64 Nil
Measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward group 7.00 Nil
7.64 Nil
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART

of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE 41
RATIO ANALYSIS
Sr. No. Rado Numerator Denominator Stz | Frensor ‘.Vo Reaslon for
Year Year Variance variance
1 Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 9.67 8.08 19.75%
2 Debr Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt (including lease liability)]  Total sharcholder equity 0.00 0.00 0.00%
3 | Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for debt service Debt Service = Interest & Lease
(in times) (Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash Payments + Principal Repayments | 1,953.70 | 1,935.69] 0.93%
operating expenses like depreciation|
and other amortizations + Interest
+ other adjustments like loss on sale
of Fixed assets etc.)
4 Return on Equity Ratio (in%) | Profit after Tax Average Sharcholders Equity 7 % 8% -6.00 %
5 Inventory Turn over Ratio (in times)[ Cost of goods sold Average inventory 11.07 13.23 | -16.26 %
6 Trade Receivable Turn over Ratio (intimes) | Net Credit Sales Average Accounts Receivable 24.50 26.19 | -6.43%
7 | Trade Payable Turn over Ratio (in times) | Net Credit Purchases Average Accounts Payable 3.83 3.63 5.68 %
8 Net Capital Turn over Ratio (in times) Net Sales (Sales minus sales return) |  Working Capital 0.47 0.67 | - 29.62% On Recoung of
decrese in revenue
from operation .
9 Net Profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit (Net profit after tax) Net Sales (Sales minus sales return)| 26 % 21% | 23.10 %
10 | Returnon Capital Employed Ratio EBIT Capital Employed 9 % 9% -331%
(in %) (Tangible net worth+Total debt
+Deferred Tax Liability)
11 Return on Investment (in %) Net return on investment Average investment 8 % 5 % 62.56 %| On account of
higher profits
from Investment.




CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 315t March 2022 (contd.)

NOTE - 42:

The Company has elected to exercise the option of lower tax rate as per section 115BAA and has accordingly recognised Provision for Income
Tax for the year ended March 31, 2022 and remeasured Deferred Tax Assets at the lower tax rate prescribed in the said section.

NOTE : 43
OTHER NOTES
Additional Regulatory Information as required under Schedule I1I Division I of Companies Act,2013

(i)

(i)
(iif)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company does not hold any Benami property and there are no Proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in any time during the year and
previous year.

The company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956.

All the charges/satisfaction are registered with Registrar of Companies within the statutory period as specified in the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) The Company confirms that no funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity(‘Intermediaries”),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company(‘Ultimare Beneficiaries”)or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management confirms that no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity(“Funding Parties”),with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether ,directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency anytime during the financial year.

(viii) During the year there are no loans or advances made to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and related parties.

(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The same has been used for the specific purpose for
which it was taken.

The Quarterly returns / statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are agreement with books of accounts and
hence no separate disclosure is made for reason for discrepancies.

The Company has complied with Sec 2(87) of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the
investments made by the Company.

All title deeds of immovable properties are in the name of the company.

Vide our report of date attached

For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0042835
G. Renﬁz::tj:n §. Ganesan Ajit Thomas
Place : Chennai er Director Chairman
Date : 26.07.2022 Membership No. 219922 DIN : 68588380 DIN : 00018691
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THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered. Office : 27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U25191KL1937PLC000691  Telephone : 0484 — 2315312, Fax: 0484- 2312541
E-mail: secmidland@avtplantations.co.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 85* Annual General Meeting of the Company at 10.30 A.M. on Thursday, the
15th September, 2022 at the Registered Office of the Company at 27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Ernakulam, Kochi - 682 036.

[ FolioNo. | | | I | | | |
Full Name of the *Shareholder/proxy (in block letters) Signature of *Shareholder/proxy
* Strike out whichever is not applicable E-rmail ID

NOTE: Sharcholders attending the meeting in Person / Proxy are requested to complete the Attendance Slip and handover at the entrance
of the Meeting Hall.

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) :  UL25191KL1937PLC000691

Name of the Company :  THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office 1 27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036

Name of the member(s)
Registered address
E-mail ID

FolioNo

[/ We, being the member(s) holding .................................... shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 85" Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Thursday, the 15th day of September, 2022 at 10.30 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at
2711032, Panampilly Nagar, Ernakulam, Kochi - 682 036 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Resolution Item Nos.

1. Adoption of financial statements (including consolidated financial statements) for the year ended 31.03.2022
2. Declaration of Final Dividend on Equity Shares.
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Ajit Thomas as Director
4. Re-appointment of Mr. S. Ganesan as Director
5. Re-appointment of M/s. Suri & Co. Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company
6. Revision in remuneration of Ms. Divya Thomas, Manager - Business Strategy
Revenue
Signed this ............... day of cccuovrvncenisrnncnas 2022 Stamp of
Signature of shareholder Re 1/-

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Note: This formn of prexy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.



